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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included ie tombined financial statements of
Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. as of and foe tyear ended December 31, 2019 under the
Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliationeports, Consolidated Business Reports, and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated éfptises are the same as those included in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in camfg with International Financial Reporting
Standards No. 10 endorsed by the Financial Sumewi€ommission, “Consolidated Financial
Statements”. In addition, the information requitede disclosed in the combined financial statesient
is included in the consolidated financial stateree@onsequently, Sino-American Silicon Products
Inc. and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separatd sembined financial statements.

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.

Chairman: Ming-Kuang Lu

March 19, 2020



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Sino-American Silid@roducts Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statésneinSino-American Silicon Products Inc. and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise tt@nsolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, the consolidated statements of ecg@mpsive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the years then ended, and notes to theaaated financial statements, including a sunymar
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on the audit results of t@mantant and the audit report of other accountants
the accompanying consolidated financial statememesent fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group aPatember 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated caswdléor the years then ended in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Finan&aports by Securities Issuers and with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSkiternational Accounting Standards (“IASs”),
Interpretations developed by the International Ram Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”), and the former Standing Interpretatiodemmittee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect
by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Rxdipuwof China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Régas Governing Auditing and Certification
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accams$ and the auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities undleose standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Csmlidated Financial Statements section of our tepor
We are independent of the Group in accordance théh Certified Public Accountants Code of
Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Chdeind we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Bawsethe audit results of the accountant and thé aud
report of other accountants, we believe that thditaevidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Other Matter

Among the investments included in the consolidat@ehpany under equity method, the financial
statements of Crystalwise Technology Inc. have be®n checked by the accountant and have been
checked by other accountants. Therefore, amongpi@ons expressed by the accountant on the
consolidated financial statements, the amount kdbokethe financial statements of is based on the
audit report of other accountants. The amount wéstment in Crystalwise Technology Inc. under
equity method was 0.4% On December 31. The shagaiofor loss of related companies under equity
method for January 1 to December 31, 2018 accoufded3)% of the net profit before tax
respectively.



The consolidated company has prepared standalosecial statements for 2019 and 2018, and the
audit report issued by the accountant with ungwealifopinions plus other matters is available for
reference.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in owfegsional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated ficiah statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our awflite consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and veerobt provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit msathet should be disclosed in this audit report
are as follows:

1. Revenue recognition of customer contracts

Please refer to note 4(15) “Revenue recognition” &counting policy and note 6(25)
“Revenue from contracts with customers” of the cbated financial statements for further
information.

Description of key audit matter:

The main source of Revenue of the semiconductaness unit of the consolidated company
is the sales of semiconductor silicon crystal makerand their components. The recognition of
operating revenue is determined according to thairtg conditions agreed with the customers. As
the transaction volume is large and from globaliapdration locations, as a result, the accountant
has recognized the Revenue as one of the impatahtiation items for the implementation of the
consolidated financial report audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

In relation to the key audit matter above, we haedormed certain key audit procedures that
included understanding of revenue recognition pEgi@and assessing whether revenue recognition
policies are appropriate based on sales terms @rehue recognition criteria; understanding the
design and process of implementation of internaitrods and testing operating effectiveness;
testing selected sales samples and agreeing tmnoemstorders, delivery note and related
documentation supporting sales recognition; testsajes cut-off, on a sample basis, for
transactions incurred within a certain period befor after the balance sheet date by reviewing
related sales terms, inspecting delivery documests] other related supporting document to
evaluate whether the revenue was recorded in ppgyerd.

2. Assessment of impairment loss on property, @adtequipment

For the accounting policy of asset impairment, gdegefer to Note 4 (13) of the consolidated
financial statements for impairment of non-finahcassets; for accounting hypothesis and
estimated uncertainty of assessment of impairnoeas dn property, plant and equipment(including
right of use assets), please refer to Note 5 (Ih@fconsolidated financial statements. For naies t
the assessment of impairment loss on propertyt plagh equipment, please refer to Note 6 (11) and
6(12) of the consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matters:

The industry in which the solar power business ohithe consolidate company is located is
subjected to fluctuations due to the market enwvitent and the energy policies of various
governments, with fierce market competition andtiemous price drop of products. Therefore, the
assessment of impairment loss on property, plathteguipment is important; the asset impairment
assessment includes lIdentifying the cash-generatmy determining the evaluation method,
selecting important assumptions, and calculatirg récoverable amount that must rely on the
subjective judgment of the management. The evagirocess is complicate d and contains the
subjective judgment of the management. Therefdne, dccountant booked it as one of the
important audit matters.

Audit procedure implemented:
The principal audit procedures for the above keglitamatters by the accountant include:

4-1-



assessing whether the cash-generating unit andeliésed tested assets that the consolidated
company management has identified to impair shossipte signs of impairment, and further
understanding and testing the evaluation models kaydassumptions such as future cash flow
projections, use period and weighted average cbstapital that the management use in the
impairment test, including expected product Revemasts and expenses, and assessing the
accuracy of previous management forecasts; andjimgriout sensitivity analysis of results.
Furthermore, the management authority is also dtatson relevant procedures in order to identify
whether there will be matters capable of affectimg impairment test result in the future after the
financial statements. And assess whether the ddasedl company has properly disclosed the
policy of long-term non-financial asset impairmant other related information

3. Impairment of goodwill

Please refer to the note 4(13) “Intangible asskeisaccounting policy, note 5(2) “Significant
accounting assumptions and judgments, and majorcesuof estimation uncertainty” for
impairment assessment, and note 6(13) “Intang&deta” for further details.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group is in a capital intensive industry, wattodwill arising from business combinations'
Moreover, the Group operates in an industry in Whice operations are easily influenced by
various external factors, such as market conditiand governmental policies. Therefore, the
assessment of impairment of goodwill is one of kKey areas in our audit. The assessment
procedures, including identification of cash-getiataunits, valuation models, selection of key
assumptions and calculations of recoverable cdkiwis, depend on the management’s subjective
judgments, which contained uncertainty in accognéstimations. Consequently, this is one of the
key areas in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:
In relation to the key audit matter above, we hpe@dormed certain key audit procedures that
included: assessing triggering events identifigdianagement for impairment indicators existing
in a cash-generating unit, assessing whether themgsgtions used for evaluating the recoverable
amount are reasonable; evaluating the achievenignriar year financial forecasts; inspecting the
calculations of recoverable amounts; assessing@dbamptions used for calculating recoverable
amounts and cash flow projections; performing tkasgivity analysis based on key factors;
assessing whether the accounting policies for gdbtmpairment and other relevant information
have been appropriately disclosed.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Gowgrthe Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and with the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIQ] SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic @fina, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enabledparption of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether dudeatal or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statememgnagement is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concerncldising, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of att@uanless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no rieadisérnative but to do so.



Those charged with governance (including the AGdiinmittee) are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdym# avhether the consolidated financial statemasta whole
are free from material misstatement, whether dueatad or error, and to issue an auditors’ repuat includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high Idwedsurance, but is not a guarantee that an anwlitucted in
accordance with the auditing standards generatiged in the Republic of China will always detechaterial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements care drem fraud or error and are considered matefial i
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasay be expected to influence the economic decisarusers
taken on the basis of these consolidated finastagééments.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditinghdtads generally accepted in the Republic of Chima,
exercise professional judgment and maintain pradaasskepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatgraf the consolidated financial statements, wdretlue
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procesluesponsive to those risks, and obtain auditeexie
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide ai®dsr our opinion. The risk of not detecting a ervéll
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than doe resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreg@etations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control refgta the audit in order to design audit procedtines are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiverés
the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pslioged and the reasonableness of accounting estimat
and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management'sfule going concern basis of accounting and,dase
the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiagétainty exists related to events or conditions thay
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability tontinue as a going concern. If we conclude that seriz
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atbenim our auditors’ report to the related disclesuin the
consolidated financial statements or, if such dsgtes are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence olbtaipeo the date of our auditors’ report. Howe¥gture
events or conditions may cause the Group to ceasantinue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure andent of the consolidated financial statementduoing
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated dinhstatements represent the underlying transactod
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regaydhe financial information of the entities ordmess
activities within the Group to express an opiniom ihe consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision andgentnce of the group audit. We remain solely resitda
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governaegarding, among other matters, the planned scope an
timing of the audit and significant audit findingacluding any significant deficiencies in interrantrol that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance wighhatement that we have complied with relevaritaith
requirements regarding independence, and to conuamenwith them all relationships and other mattbeg
may reasonably be thought to bear on our indep&edamd where applicable, related safeguards.
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

From the matters communicated with those chargéd gavernance, we determine those matters that efere
most significance in the audit of the consolidétadncial statements of the current period andfaeesfore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters iraoditors’ report unless law or regulation prechigeblic
disclosure about the matter or when, in extrematg circumstances, we determine that a matter dhmilbe
communicated in our report because the adverseeqaeaces of doing so would reasonably be expeoted t
outweigh the public interest benefits of such comization.

The engagement partners on the audit resultingisnindependent auditors’ report are Cheng-ChidrgnCand
An-Chih, Cheng.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 19, 2020
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Assets
Current assets:

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6(1))

Financial assets at fair value through profit or fess
current (Note 6(2))

Current financial assets at amortized cost (Note 6(4)
and 7)

Notes and accounts receivable, net (Note 6(5)and 25)

Accounts receivable due from related parties, net (Note
6(25) and 7)

Inventories (Note 6(6))

Other financial assets — current (Note 8)

Other current assets

Non-current Assets:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or fessn
current (note 6(2))

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - non-current (Note 6 (3))

Financial assets measured at amortized cost -
non-current (Note 6 (4) and 7)

Investments accounted for using equity method (Note 6 (7))

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6 (11) and 8)
Right of use assets (Note 6 (12))

Intangible assets (Note 6 (13))

Deferred tax assets (Note 6 (21))

Other non-current assets (Note 6 (20) and 8)
Other financial assets — non-current (Note 8)

Total assets

2019.12.31 2018.12.31 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Amount % Amount % Liabilities and Equity Amount % Amount %
Current Liabilities:
$ 34,901,425 32 36,829,131 35 2100 Short-term borrowings (Note 6 (14) and 8) $ 11,465,075 11 9,334,809
2120 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss—
1,883,576 2 323,548 - current (Note 6(2)) 216,700 - 119 -
2130 Contract liabilities - current (Note 6 (25), 7 and 9) 4,128,893 4 4,662,837 5
240,068 - - - 2170 Notes and accounts payable 4,171,687 4 5,184,889 5
8,434,2497 9,767,417 g 2180 Accounts payable to related parties (Notes 7) 8,008 - 51,342 -
72,965 - 113,915 - 2201 Payroll and bonus payable 2,851,934 3 2,295,168
2250 Provision — current (Note 6 (18) and 9) 232,256 - 10,074 -
7,398,293 7 7,881,367 g 2230 Current tax liabilities 2,692,745 2 2,127,809 2
913,823 1 770,117 1 2399 Other current liabilities (Note 6 (16),(17) and 7) 4,393,096 4 6,486,646 6
1321234 1 1,575,354 2 30,160,394 28 30,153,693 29
55,165,633 50 57,260,849 55 o
Non-current Liabilities:
2527 Contract liabilities-non-current (Note 6 (25), 7 and 9) 17,280,344 16 15,712,134 15
95,163 - - - 2540 Long-term borrowings (Note 6 (15) and 8) - - 2,040,200 2
332 185 1204.924 1 2550 Provision — non current (Note 6 (18) and 9) 4,674,648 4 1,014,869 1
’ T 2570 Deferred tax liabilities (Note 6 (21)) 4,813,876 4 3,664,664 4
267,612 - 281,366 - 2600 Other non-current liabilities (Note 6 (16) and (17)) 887,803 1 312,861 -
3,248,537 3 2,041,896 2 2640 Net defined benefit liabilities-non-current (Note 6 (20)) 2,950,390 3 3,173,029 3
40,276,71537 37,438,555 36 30,607,061 28 25.917.757 25
913,609 1 - - Total liabilities 60,767,455 56 56,071,450 54
3,227,583 3 3,649,397 4
1,927,636 2 1,514,843 2 Equity (Note 6 (22)and (23))
788,017 1 267,825 - 3110 Ordinary shares 5,862,367 5 5,863,207 6
” 213;%3‘:'303-806 53 6 3;2233%% - 15 3170 Pending share capital (150) - (330 -
= B 5,862,217 5 5,862,877 6
3200 Capital surplus 21,072,595 19 21,757,292 21
Retained earnings:
3310 Legal reserve 462,354 - 311,579 -
3320 Special reserve 513,302 1 513,302 1
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings (accumulated loss) 2,591,235 2 1,507,753 1
3,566,891 3 2,332,634 2
3400 Other equity interest (3,831,462) (3) (3,071,087) (3)
Total equity attributable to shareholders of Sino-American 26 670,241 24 26881716 26
Silicon Products Inc.
36XX Non-controlling interests (Note 6 (8 and 9)) 21,945,800 20 21,032,149 20
Total equity 48,616,041 44 47,913,865 46
$ 109383496 100 103.985315 100 Total liabilities and equity $ 100383496 100  103,985315 100

(Please read the attached notes to the consolidated financial statertsefor details)
—-5—
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
from January 1 to December 31, 2019 and 2018

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars

Operating revenue (Note 6 (25) and 7) $
Operating costs (Note 6 (6), (12),(13),(19),(20),(26) and 7)

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
65,510,225 100 69,238,945 100

46,242,686 71

50,597,092 73

Gross profit from operations

19,267,539 29

18,641,853 27

Operating expenses (Note 6 (12),(13),(19),(20),626) 7)
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses
Impairment loss determined in accordance with IFRE@e 6(5))

1,396,627 2

1,416,904 2

Total operating expenses

2,513,345 4 2,094,839 3
1,844,789 3 1,849,867 3
(2,643) - 102,738 -

5752118 9 5464348 8

Net operating income

13,515,421 20

13,177,505 19

Non-operating income and expenses:
Other Revenue (Note 6 (27) and 7)
Other gains and losses, net (Note 6 (28))
Financial costs
Shares of profit of associates and joint ventucesanted for using equity
method (Note 6 (7))

Income before income tax
Income tax expenses (Note 6 (21))

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently torofit or loss
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined begnafis (Note 6 (20))
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in ggogtruments
measured at fair value through other compreheriso@ne
Income tax related to components of other comprafierincome that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss (Not€Zl))

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to prifor loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apens
Share of other comprehensive income of associatkfomt ventures
accounted for using equity method (Note 6 (19))
Income tax related to components of other compratierincome that
will be reclassified to profit or loss (Note 6 (21)

Total Items that may be reclassified subsequently tprofit or loss

Other comprehensive income (after tax)

767,209 2 517,896 -
136,376 71,244 -
(150,407) - (212,003) -
(344,430) (1) (236,409) -
408748 1 140,728 -
13,924,169 21 13,318,233 19
5028824 7 4682753 7
8.895345 14 8635480 12
179,386 - (265,423) -
5450 - (521,764) (1)
(120,951) - 68,152 -
63,885 - (719,035) (1)
(1,535,230) (2 940,983 1
9,860 - (173,644) -
305271 - (102,154) -
(960.359)  (2) 665185 1
(896,474) (2) (53,850) -

7998871 12

8,581,630 12

Total comprehensive income $
Net income attributable to:
Shareholders of Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. $

Non-Controlling Interests

2,248,386 4
6,646,959 10

1,950,503 2
6,684,977 10

8,895345 14

8,635,480 12

Total comprehensive gain or loss attributable to:
Shareholders of Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. $

Non-Controlling Interests

1,774,007 3
6,224,864 9

1,604,225 2
6,977,405 10

$ 7,998,871 12 8,581,630 12

Basic earnings per share (NT dollars (Note 6 (26))
Basic earnings per share $ 3.86 3.36
Diluted earnings per share $ 3.83 3.34

(Please read the attached notes to the consolidated financial statertgefor details)
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiaris
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
From January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2019

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent conpany

Other equity items

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Balance at January 1, 2018
Effects of retrospective application of new
accounting standards

Balance at January 1, 2018 after adjustments 5,920,587

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Comprehensive income for the year

Loss made up by capital reserve

Cash dividends distribution from capital
surplus

Share of net worth changes of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method

Retirement of treasury stock

Donated surplus

Non-controlling equity changes

Expiration of restricted employee stock

Restrictions on employee rights invalid,
pending for cancellation

Disposal of investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Cash dividends paid by subsidiary

Balance at December 31, 2018 $

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Comprehensive income for the year

Appropriation and distribution of retained
earnings:
Legal reserve

Cash dividends on ordinary shares
Cash dividends distribution from capital
surplus
Share of net worth changes of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method
Non-controlling equity changes

Expiration of restricted employee stock
Restrictions on employee rights invalid,
pending for cancellation

Donated surplus

Disposal of investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Cash dividends paid by subsidiary

Retained earnings Exchange
differences Unrealized
) on inancial gains (losses)
Unappropriate translation of Financialassets "0t 2o
d retained foreign at fair value
) ) ) ) eamnings ! 9! through other for Sa_|e Employees’
Ordinary Pending Capital Special (Accumulated financial comprehensive financial unearned Treasury Non-Controllin
shares share capital surplus Legal reserve reserve loss) Total statements income assets remuneration Other Total shares Total g Interests Total Equity

5,920,587 - 24,205,831 311,579 513,302 (317,629) 507,252 (1,973,334) - (1,109,281) (236,020) (4,302) (3,322,937) (169,861) 27,140,872 16,636,039 43,776,911
- - - - - 1,222,787 1,222,787 - (2,338,298) 1,109,281 - - (1,229,017) - (6.230) (6,024) (12,254)
- 24,205,831 311,579 513,302 905,158 1,730,039  (1,973,334)  (2,338,298) - (236,020) (4,302) (4,551,954) (169,861) 27,134,642 16,630,015 43,764,657
- - - - - 1,950,503 1,950,503 - - - - - - - 1,950,503 6,684,977 8,635,480
- - - - - (107,341) (107,341) 387,093 (626,030) - - - (238,937) - (346,278) 292,428 (53,850)
- - - - - 1,843,162 1,843,162 387,093 (626,030) - - - (238,937) - 1,604,225 6,977,405 8,581,630

- - (317,629) - - 317,629 317,629 - - - - - - - - - -
- - (1,759,511) - - - - - - - - - - - (1,759,511) - (1,759,511)
- - 124 - - - - - - - - 922 922 - 1,046 - 1,046

(55,550) - (114,311) - - - - - - - - - - 169,861 - - -
- - 239 - - - - - - - - - - - 239 - 239
- - (245,804) - - - - - - - - - - - (245,804) (425,701) (671,505)
- - (9,487) - - - - - - - 160,686 - 160,686 - 151,199 - 151,199
(1,830) (330) (2,160) - - - - - - - - - - - (4,320) - (4,320)

- - - - - (1,558,196) (1,558,196) - 1,558,196 - - - 1,558,196 - - - -
R R N R R - - - - - - - - - - (2,149,570)  (2,149,570)
5,863,207 (330) 21,757,292 311,579 513,302 1,507,753 2,332,634 (1,586,241) (1,406,132) - (75,334) (3,380) (3,071,087) - 26,881,716 21,032,149 47,913,865
- - - - - 2,248,386 2,248,386 - - - - - - - 2,248,386 6,646,959 8,895,345
- - - - 29,819 29,819 (638,103) 133,905 - - - (504,198) - (474,379) (422,095) (896,474)
- - - 2,278,205 2,278,205 2,278,205 (638,103) 133,905 - - - (504,198) - 1,774,007 6,224,864 7,998,871

- - - 150,775 - (150,775) - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - (1,356,963) (1,356,963) - - - - - - - (1,356,963) - (1,356,963)
- - (401,900) - - - - - - - - - - (401,900) - (401,900)
- - (279,229) - - - - - - - - 112 112 - (279,117) 1,984 (277,133)
- - (21) - - - - - - - - (21) (447) (468)
- - (3,115) - - - - - - - 56,726 - 56,726 - 53,611 - 53,611
(840) 180 (660) - - - - - - - - - - - (1,320) - (1,320)
- - 228 - - - - - - - - - - - 228 - 228

- - - - - 313,015 313,015 - (313,015) - - - (313,015) - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (5,312,750) (5,312,750)
5,862,367 (150) 21,072,595 462,354 513,302 2,591,235 3,566,891 (2,224,344) (1,585,242) - (18,608) (3,268) (3,831,462) - 26,670,241 21,945,800 48,616,041

Balance at December 31, 2019 $

(Please read the attached notes to the consolidatidancial statements for details)
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiaris
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
From January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2019
Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income tax

Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation expense
Amortization expenses

Expected credit losses / Provisions for bad depeese
Net gains on financial assets or liabilities at failue through profit

or loss

Interest expenses

Interest income

Dividend income

Share-based payment remuneration cost

Share of profit of subsidiaries and associatesiated for

using equity method

(Gains) losses on disposal of property, plant andpenent

Gains on disposal of investment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Impairment loss of finance assets

Provision for (reversal of) inventory valuation

Impairment loss for (reversal of) non-finance asset

Provision for liability
Total adjustments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Notes and accounts receivable (including relatetigsa

Inventories

Prepayments for purchase of materials
Other financial assets
Other current assets

Notes and accounts payable (including relatedgsrti

Contract liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Other operating liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash inflow generated from operations

Interest received

Dividends received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

2019 2018
13,924,169 13,318,233
5,030,426 5,628,233
364,830 354,779
(2,643) 102,738
286,287 (44,659)
150,407 212,003
(757,732) (482,902)
(9,477) (34,994)
53,611 151,199
344,430 236,409
23,276 (129,992)
(72,584) -
1,141 -
25973 -
(109,158) (37,345)
(8,779) 1,436,217
3,883,063 443,404
9,203,071 7,835,090
1,374,487 (1,153,986)
592,232 2,203,883
4,248 1,079,561
70,638 (524,740)
(325,743) (408,244)
(1,055,681) (115,644)
(2,037,234) 14,252,038
(3,293) 5,838
(229,612) 811,517
(1,609,958) 16,150,223
7,593,113 23,985,313
21,517,282 37,303,546
782,061 452,590
9,477 34,994
(159,532) (233,845)
(3,318,168) (1,467,974)
18,831,120 36,089,311

(Continued on next page)

(Please read the attached notes to the consolidatidancial statements for details)
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiaris
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
From January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2019

Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value thgbwther comprehensive
income

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets av&due through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from capital reduction of financial asaéfair value through
other comprehensive income

Acquisition of financial assets measured at amxexitcost

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value thgbuprofit or loss

Proceeds of financial assets at fair value thrqurgfit or loss

Acquisition of investments accounted for using ggmethod

Cash dividends from investments accounted for usingty method

Proceeds of subsidiary

Acquisition of property, plant and advance paymeatgived for
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egem

Decrease in other financial assets

Net cash flows used in investing activities:

Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in short term borrowings
Increase in long term borrowings
Repayments of long term borrowings
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received
Payment of lease liabilities
Distribution of cash dividends out of capital reser
Restrictions on employee rights invalid of writd-of
Change in non-controlling interests
Donated surplus
Cash dividends of distributing non-controlling irgsts

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes
Net increase in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $

2019 2018
(197,610) (197,197)
553,385 -
28,239 8,732
(250,000) -
(1,907,850) (276,529)
194,245 -
(1,132,310) (990,000)
55,068 6,422
166,668
(7,719,440) (6,597,886)
105,349 560,149
(3,067,397) 56,023
(13,171,653) (7.430,286)
2,163,041  (4,464,007)
- 1,026,000
(2,040,200)  (4,632,672)
(145,179) 17,858
(201,027) -
(1,758,863) (1,759,511)
(1,320) (4,320)
(468) (575,394)
228 239
(5,312,750) (2.149,570)
(7,296,538) (12,541,377)
(290,635) 368,703
(1,927,706) 16,486,351
6,829,131 20,342,780
34,901,425 36,829,131

(Please read the attached notes to the consolidatidancial statements for details)
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiaris
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unés Otherwise Specified)

Company history

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. (“SAS” or “th@ompany”) was incorporated in
accordance with the Company Act of the Republi€Cbina in January 1981; also, the Chunan
Branch was established in June 2005 at No.8, Indu&ast Road 2, Science Based Industrial
Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan, R.O.C. The company, as aglits subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) mainly engages in the design, productand sale of semi-conductor silicon
materials and components, rheostat, optical andraamcations wafer materials; also the related
technology, management consulting business, aruhitad services of the photo-voltaic power
system generation and installation.

The parent company’s stocks have been traded pulalicthe Taipei Exchange (referred
hereinafter as TPEXx) since March 2001.

For the purpose of reorganization and provision pobfessional work to enhance
competitiveness and business performance, a resolas reached at the shareholders’ meeting
of the parent company on June 17, 2011 to havesémeiconductor business and sapphire
business (including the related assets, liabiliaed business operations) split and transfer the
businesses o the parent company’s 100% owned satiss] GlobalWafers Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as “GlobalWafers”) and Sino Sapphire, @ad. (hereinafter referred to as “Sino
Sapphire”) with the base date of split as schedafe@ctober 1, 2011. The parent company based
on the net carrying value of the semiconductor ess paid NT$ 38.50 per share to acquire
180,000 thousand shares at NT$ 10 par value pee sifaGlobalWafers; also, based on the
sapphire business net assets the parent compadyN¥e$ 40 per share to acquire 40,000
thousand shares at NT$ 10 par value per sharenofSipphire.

A resolution merging with Sunrise Global Solar Eye€Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
“Sunrise Global”) was reached by the Board of DOimex on August 12, 2013 with the base date
of merger scheduled as August 1, 2014. The pammipany is the surviving corporation and
Sunrise Global is discontinued after the merger.

The shares of GlobalWafers were approved for tgadirer the counters through the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. They were booked on the counteSeptember 25, 2015 and were closed for
trading over emerging counters the same day.

The consolidated company acquired all outstandimdinary shares of SunEdison
Semiconductor Limited (hereinafter referred to amEdison) on December 2, 2016 so that it
aquired the control over SunEdison Semiconductorited and its subsidiaries. SunEdison is the
world's leading semiconductor wafer manufacturet smpplier. Since its inception, SunEdison
has been a leader in wafer design and R&D techgolSgnEdison's R&D and manufacturing
bases are located throughout the United StateggpEBuand Asia to develop next-generation
high-performance semiconductor wafers. Throughdhdauisition, the consolidated company will
be able to increase its global market share, custdmase and other wafer technology and
capacity and expand operations.



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Approval date and procedures of the consolidatefinancial statements
These consolidated financial statements were auattbrfor issuance by the board of
directors on March 19, 2020.

New standards, amendments and interpretations agted
(@) The impact of the International Financial Rejpgr Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (“FSC")iethhave already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations an@m@aments have been endorsed by the
FSC and are effective for annual periods beginomgr after January 1, 2019.

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretatioss  Effective date per IASB

IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” andary 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with tiega January 1, 2019
compensation”

Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailmant o January 1, 2019
Settlement”

Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in assi@&s and joint January 1, 2019
ventures”

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-201TeCyc January 1, 2019

Except for the following items, the Group beliewbat the adoption of the above IFRSs
would not have any material impact on its consediddinancial statements. The extent and
impact of signification changes are as follows:

1. IFRS 16“Leases”

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidanceudimd IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Le&#€-15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substancerahdactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease.

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified reteasive approach, under which
the cumulative effect of initial application is cgmized in retained earnings on January
1, 2019. The details of the changes in accountaligips are disclosed below,

1) Definition of a lease

Previously, the Group determined at contract inoepivhether an arrangement is
or contains a lease under IFRIC 4. Under IFRS H®6 Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the defindf a lease, as explained in
Note 4(11).

—10 -
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to wpbe practical expedient to
grandfather the assessment of which transactiamseases. The Group applied
IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously tded as leases. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and GFRlwere not reassessed for
whether there is a lease. Therefore, the definitiba lease under IFRS 16 was
applied only to contracts entered into or changedraafter January 1, 2019.

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leasesperating or finance leases
based on its assessment of whether the leasedratsisignificantly all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of thdaulying asset to the Group.
Under IFRS 16, the Group recognizes right-of-usetssand lease liabilities for
most leases — i.e. these leases are on-balande shee

The Group decided to apply recognition exemptiamsstiort-term leases and
leases of low-valve assets, including other equigme

° Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17

At transition, lease liabilities were measured te present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted at the Gronpfemental borrowing
rate as at January 1, 2019. Right-of-use asseta@asured at either:

their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applsince the
commencement date, discounted using the lesse&€senmental
borrowing rate at the date of initial applicatiam;

— an amount equal to the lease liability, adjustgdh® amount of any

prepaid or accrued lease payments — the Groupeapiblis approach to
all other lease.

In addition, the Group used the following practiomkpedients when
applying IFRS 16 to leases.

— Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio efases with similar
characteristics.

— Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amountA& 37 onerous

contract provision immediately before the datendtial application, as
an alternative to an impairment review.

— Applied the exemption not to recognize right-oéusssets and
liabilities for leases with less than 12 monthdeafse term.

— Excluded initial direct costs from measuring tlght-of-use asset at

- 11—



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

the date of initial application.

Used hindsight when determining the lease terimeifcontract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

e |Leases previously classified as finance leases

For leases that were classified as finance leasdsruAS 17, the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset and the leasditiat January 1, 2019 are
determined at the carrying amount of the leaset asgElease liability under
IAS 17 immediately before that date.

3) Asalessor

The Group is not required to make any adjustmentgansition to IFRS 16 for
leases in which it acts as a lessor, except fobadease. The Group accounted for
its leases in accordance with IFRS 16 from the dhieitial application.

4) Impacts on financial statements

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group recognized taithl right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities both of $1,150,876 thousands. WWheasuring lease liabilities,
the Group discounted lease payments using its rimeméal borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019. The weighted-average rate apiglied 8%.

The explanation of differences between operatiagdecommitments disclosed at
the end of the annual reporting period immediafelceding the date of initial
application, and lease liabilities recognized ie #tatement of balance sheets at
the date of initial application disclosed as folkow

January 1, 2019

Operating lease commitment at December 31, 20t8&akmsed in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements $ 14,945

Recognition exemption for:

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 21,894)
Extension and termination options reasonably aettabe exercised 83,429
$ 1,176,480
Discounted using the incremental borrowing ratéeatuary 1, 2019  $ 1,150,876
Finance lease liabilities recognized as at Decerdbe?2018 28,392
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 1,179,268

2. IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatménts

In assessing whether and how an uncertain taxnegdtaffects the determination of
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tagds, unused tax credits, as well as tax
—12—



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rates, an entity shall assume that a taxation atghweill examine the amounts it has
the right to examine and have a full knowledge lbretated information when making
those examinations.

If an entity concludes that it is probable that thgation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, the entity shall deterntirgetaxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, as welasates consistently with the tax
treatment used or planned to be used in its indamélings. Otherwise, an entity shall
reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncerttax treatment by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value, dependingwhich method the entity
expects to better predict the resolution of thesutainty.

There was no material impact on the cash flowsnduitie said period.

(b) The impact of IFRS endorsed by FSC but noeffeictive

(©)

The following new standards, interpretations ancem@aments have been endorsed by the
FSC and are effective for annual periods beginomg@r after January 1, 2020 in accordance
with Rule No. 1080323028 issued by the FSC on 28]y2019:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” Jany 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS7 “Interesednchmark Reform” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Matafi January 1, 2020

The Group assesses that the adoption of the aboviemed standards would not have any
material impact on its consolidated financial staats.

The impact of IFRS issued by International Agtiing Standards Board but not yet
endorsed by the FSC

As of the date, the following IFRSs that have besswmed by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), but have yet to be endoyetie FSC.:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contrdoubf Assets Between anEffective date to
Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” be determined

by IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities Current or Non-current” January 1, 2022

The Group is evaluating the impact of its initidbation of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its consolidated financial positand consolidated financial performance.
The results thereof will be disclosed when the @roompletes its evaluation.

— 13-



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Summary of significant accounting policies:

The significant accounting policies presented i ttonsolidated financial statements are
summarized below. Except for those specificallyigated, the following accounting policies were

applied consistently throughout the periods preseimt the consolidated financial statements.
(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have beempaped in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of FinandReports by Securities Issuers”
(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), i@tonal Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interatiens, and SIC Interpretations endorsed

and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisdoynmission, R.O.C (hereinafter referred
to as the “IFRSs endorsed by the FSC”).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, ttensolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis:

(@) Financial instruments at fair value throughfippiar loss are measured at fair value;

(b) Financial assets at fair value through othenmehensive income are measured at
fair value;

(c) Cash-settled shared-based-payment liabilitgesisured at fair value;

(d) The defined benefit liabilities (assets) areamged at fair value of the plan assets

less the present value of the defined benefit abbg, limited as explained in note
4(16).

B. Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entity ised@ined based on the primary
economic environment in which the entity operatdfie consolidated financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars¢hwlis the Company’s functional

currency. All financial information presented inWdaiwan dollars has been rounded
to the nearest thousand.

(3) Basis of consolidation
A. Principles of preparation of the consolidatethficial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise @mmpany and subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Grdupe Group ‘controls’ an entity when it
Is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returamfits involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns througtpds/er over the entity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries ackided in the consolidated financial
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

statements from the date on which control commenogis the date on which control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactionsarandnrealized income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions are elimidai@ preparing the consolidated
financial statements. The Group attributes theipoofloss and each component of other
comprehensive income to the owners of the parestt@rthe non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling intéselaving a deficit balance.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statesngsihg uniform accounting policies
for alike transactions and other events in sindlezumstances.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in aididyy that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactioms. éfference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted Hre fair value of the consideration
paid or received will be recognized directly in gguand the Group will attribute it to
the owners of the parent.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiayeiecognizes the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, andyarelated non-controlling interests and
other components of equity. Any interest retainedhie former subsidiary is measured
at fair value when control is lost, with the resgt gain or loss being recognized in
profit or loss. The Group recognizes as gain os lws profit or loss the difference
between (i) the fair value of the considerationereed as well as any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at its fair vatueghe date when control is lost ;and (ii)
the assets (including any goodwill), liabilities thfe subsidiary as well as any related
non-controlling interests at their carrying amouatshe date when control is lost, as
gain or loss in profit or loss. When the Group ®sentrol of its subsidiary, it accounts
for all amounts previously recognized in other coshgnsive income in relation to that
subsidiary on the same basis as would be requirédhiad directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

2. List of subsidiaries in the consolidated finahsitatements:

Name of Percentage of Ownership
Investor Name of subsidiary Business 2019.12.31 2018.12.31 Note
Sino-AmericanSino Silicon Technology Inc.  Investment and triangular trade 100% 100%
Silicon (SSTI) center with subsidiaries in
Products Inc. China
Sino-AmericanGlobalWafers Manufacturing and trading of 51.17% 51.17%
Silicon semiconductor silicon materials
Products Inc. and components,
Sino-AmericanAleo Solar GmbH (Aleo Solar)  Solar cell manufaatgrand 100% 100%
Silicon sale and wholesale of electronic
Products Inc. materials
Sino-AmericanSAS Sunrise Inc. Investment activities 100%  100%
Silicon

Products Inc.

— 15—



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Sino-AmericanSunrise PV World Co. (Sunrise Power generating business
Silicon PV World)
Products Inc.

Sino-AmericanSunrise PV Electric Power Five Power generating business

Silicon

Co., Ltd.

Products Inc. (Sunrise PV Electric Power Five)

SAS Sunrise SAS Sunrise Pte. Ltd.

Inc.

SAS Sunrise Sulu Electric Power and Light Power generating business

Pte.Ltd. Inc.(Sulu)

SAS Sunrise  AMLED International Systems Reinvestments in various

Pte.Ltd. Inc.( AMLED) businesses

AMLED Sulu Power generating business

Aleo Solar Aleo Solar Distribuzione ltalia Solar cell manufacturing and
S.rl sale and wholesale of electronic

materials

Aleo Solar Aleo Sunrise GmbH Manufacturing of solar cell as

(Aleo Sunrise) well as sale and wholesale of
electronic materials

Sunrise PV Sunrise PV Two Co., Ltd. Power generating business

World Co. (Sunrise PV Two)

Sunrise PV Sunrise PV Electric Power Two Power generating business

World Co. (Sunrise PV Electric)

Sunrise PV Sunrise PV Three Co., Ltd. Power generating business

World Co. (Sunrise PV Three)

Sunrise PV Sunrise PV Four Co., Ltd. Power generating business

World Co. (Sunrise PV Four)

Sunrise PV Sunrise PV Five Co., Ltd. Power generating business

World Co. (Sunrise PV Five)

Investment activities

Investment actitie

GlobalWafers GlobalSemiconductor Inc. (GSI)
GlobalWafers GlobalWafers Inc. (GWI)
GlobalWafers GlobalWafers Japan Co., Ltd.
(GWJ)
GlobalWafers GWafers Singapore Pte.
Ltd.( GWafers Singapore)
GlobalWafers Topsil GlobalWafers A/S (TopsilManufacturing and trading of
A/S) silicon wafers

GlobalWafers Taisil Electronic Materials Corp. Manufacturing and trading of

Investment activities

Manufacturing and trading of
silicon wafers

Investment activities

(Taisil) silicon wafers

GSlI Kunshan Sino Silicon Technologdrocessing and trading of
Co., Ltd. (SST) ingots and wafers

GWI GWafers Singapore Investment activities

GWJ MEMC Japan Ltd. (MEMC JapaMjanufacturing and trading of

Kunshan Sino Shanghai GrowFast

Topsil A/IS

Semiconductor Technology Co.,

Ltd.

silicon wafers

Sale and marketing

Topsil Semiconductor sp z 0.0. Manufacturing and trading of

(Topsil PL)

silicon wafers

—16 —

100%  100%
100% -
100% 100%
40% 40%
45% 45%
100% 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% -
67.2% 67.2%
100% 100%
99.99% 99.98%
100% 100%
32.89 32.89
1009 1009
60% 60¥
1009 1009

Note6b

Note 1

Note 2

Note3
(1)

Note5

Note4

Note4



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GWafers GlobalWafers Singapore Pte. Ltéhvestment, marketing and 1009 1009
Singapore (Formerly known as SunEdison trading activities
Semiconductor Limited, GWS)
GWS GlobalWafers B.V. (Formerly Investment activities 1009 1009
known as SunEdison
Semiconductor B.V., GWBV)
GWBV MEMC Electronic Materials, SpManufacturing and trading of 1009 1009
(MEMC SpA) silicon wafers
MEMC SpA MEMC Electronic Materials Trading 1009 1009
France SarL(MEMC Sarl)
MEMC SpA MEMC Electronic Materials Trading 1009 1009
GmbH (MEMC GmbH)
MEMC SpA MEMC Holding B.V. (MEMC Investment activities - 1009Notel
BV) @)
GWBV - MEMC Korea Company (MEMCManufacturing and trading of - 1009Notel
MEMC BV  Korea) silicon wafers 3)
GWBV MEMC Korea Manufacturing and trading of 1009 - Note:
silicon wafers ©)
GWBV MEMC Electronic Materials, SdrResearch and development, 1009 1009
Bhd (MEMC Sdn Bhd) manufacturing and trading of
silicon wafers
GWBV SunEdison Semiconductor Trading 1009 1009
Technology (Shanghai) Ltd.
(SunEdison Shanghai)
GWBV MEMC Ipoh Sdn Bnd (MEMC Manufacturing and trading of 1009 1009
Ipoh) silicon wafers
GWBV GTI Manufacturing of epitaxial 1009 1009
wafers and silicon wafers
GTI MEMC LLC Research and development and 1009 1009
manufacturing and trading of
silicon wafers
Note 1: The consolidated company is able to conth@ financial and operating

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

strategies of Sulu through effective agreements itstother investors, so Sulu is

considered as a subsidiary.

The consolidated company does not holdinterests of the AMLED owners,

but the consolidated company can control the firsrend operating strategies

of AMLED and obtain all the benefits of its opecats and net assets in

accordance with the terms of the agreements enteted so AMLED is

considered as a subsidiary.

The consolidated company adjusted its azgéional structure as follows:

(1) Aleo Sunrise was transferred to SAS since Ma2€1i9, and was liquidated
in June 2019.

(2) MEMC BV was transferred from MEMC SpA to GWB\Whee June 18,
2019, and was liquidated in September 2019;

(3) MEMC Korea was transferred from GWBYV and MEM@ B GWBYV.

The Group sold Sunrise PV Five and Suidlectric in March and July 2019
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respectively due to operating strategy.
Note 5: Sunrise PV Two was liquidated in May 201@ tb operating strategy.
Note 6: SAS established Sunrise PV Electric Powiee fn December 2019 due to
operating strategy
3. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidatedrcial statements: None.

(4) Foreign currencies
1. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translatéal the respective functional currencies
of Group entities at the exchange rates at thesddtthe transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period, monetary items deratedhin foreign currencies are

translated into the functional currencies usingekehange rate at that date.

Non monetary items denominated in foreign currenthat are measured at fair value are
translated into the functional currencies using@kehange rate at the date that the fair
value was determined. Non monetary items denomdn@tdoreign currencies that are
measured based on historical cost are translaiad tie exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized d@iitpor loss, except for an equity
investment in equity securities designated as iatvidue through other comprehensive
income, which are recognized in other comprehensis@me.

2. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations;luding goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translatéed New Taiwan Dollars at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The incordeegpenses of foreign operations are
translated into New Taiwan Dollars at the averagt.r Exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such tbatrol, significant influence, or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the ttatisn reserve related to that foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss as dirthe gain or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of only part of its interest in bssdiary that includes a foreign operation
while retaining control, the relevant proportiontbé cumulative amount is reattributed
to non controlling interests. When the Group diggosf only part of its investment in an
associate or joint venture that includes a foresgeration while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportiohthe cumulative amount is reclassified
to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable frorpayable to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreddeduture, exchange differences arising
from such a monetary item that are considered tim fgart of the net investment in the
foreign operation are recognized in other comprsivenncome.
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(5) Classification of current and non-current asseid liabilities

(6)

An asset is classified as current under one ofdhewing criteria, and all other assets are
classified as non-current:

A.

It is expected to be realized, or intended tsblel or consumed, in the normal operating
cycle;

B. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is expected to be realized within twelve nienafter the reporting period; or

D. The asset is cash or cash equivalent unlessset is restricted from being exchanged or

used to settle a liability for at least twelve menafter the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one bétfollowing criteria, and all other liabilities
are classified as non-current:

A.

B
C.
D

It is expected to be settled in the normal ofpegacycle;

. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve month&athe reporting period; or

. The Group does not have an unconditional righddfer settlement of the liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.ni®rnf a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settletby issuing equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.eGaivalents are short-term, highly

liquid investments that are readily convertiblektown amounts of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time a&fs which meet the above definition and

are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cashmitments rather than for investment

or other purposes should be recognized as cashateoiis.
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(7) Financial instruments

1. Trade receivables and debt securities issuedingdially recognized when they are
originated. All other financial assets and finahtabilities are initially recognized when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual pangsof the instrument. A financial
asset (unless it is a trade receivable without gmifitant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fairalue plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction coslstt are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable withousignificant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost mheets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.:

« it is held within a business model whose objecivdo hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dategash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on thagypal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amartiggdwhich is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initiabgaition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest methodjusted for any loss allowance.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losasswell as impairment, are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss @retognition is recognized in profit
or loss.

(2) Fair value through other comprehensive incoRETQOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it mdmith of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL

« it is held within a business model whose objectiveachieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling ficiahassets; and

+ its contractual terms give rise on specified débesash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the princgrabunt outstanding.

Debt instrument investment meeting the followingnditions and not
specified to be measured at fair value through gailoss, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive gain or loss

On initial recognition of an equity investment thamnot held for trading, the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changbs investment’s fair value in
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other comprehensive income. This election is madaroinstrument by instrument
basis.

Equity investments at FVTOCI are subsequently neakat fair value. Dividends
are recognized as income in profit or loss unléesdividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. édtihhet gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income and arermeclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss e date on which the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

(3) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortizedtay FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financiasets. Trade receivables that the
Group intends to sell immediately or in the neamteare measured at FVTPL;
however, they are included in the ‘trade receivgldiae item. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financiaéasshich meets the requirements
to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, &/aPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch thale otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fadr. W1 gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognizegkafit or loss.

(4) Assessment whether contractual cash flows alelyspayments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principatigBned as the fair value of the
financial assets on initial recognition. ‘Interesd’ defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk asseciawith the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time dadother basic lending risks and
costs, as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flowsa@ety payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual tesfmthe instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset containstaactual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such thevould not meet this condition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers:

* contingent events that would change the amoutitning of cash flows
* terms that may adjust the contractual coupon nat&jding variable rate features
* prepayment and extension featuresnd

* terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flowsrfr specified assetse.qg.
non-recourse features.
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(5) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expeateditdosses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cadhcash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivables, guarantee deposit paid &ed fmancial assets).

The Group measures loss allowances at an amouat &xqlifetime ECL, except for
the following which are measured by 12 month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have leaditrisk at the reporting date
and

other debt securities and bank balances for whredit risk (i.e. the risk of

default occurring over the expected life of theafinial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contraseta are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a ficiah asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and whertiggting ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that isvagieand available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative apglitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s historical experience andnméd credit assessment as well as
forward looking information.

The Group considers a debt security to have lowicrisk when its credit risk rating
is equivalent to the globally understood definitioh ‘investment grade which is
considered to be BBB- or higher per Standard & Bp&aa3 or higher per Moody’s
or twA or higher per Taiwan Ratings’.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a firduasiset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be inultefehen the financial asset is more
than 180 days past due or the debtor is unlikelpay its credit obligations to the
Group in full.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all pddei default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that resulirrdefault events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (@harter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating EXXhe maximum contractual
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period over which the Group is exposed to credK.ri

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credgdes. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (ieediference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contradttae cash flows that the Group
expects to receive). ECL are discounted at thecefte interest rate of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whditencial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI ardienmpaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that havdetrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial ads®te occurred. Evidence that a
financial assets is credit-impaired includes tHe¥ang observable data:

* significant financial difficulty of the borrower essuer;

* a breach of contract such as a default or being tian 90 days past due

* the lender of the borrower, for economic or coritracreasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider

* it is probable that the borrower will enter bankayp or other financial
reorganizatiors or

* the disappearance of an active market for a sgcumécause of financial
difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured atrta®ad cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assetrigem off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a finan@akfin its entirety or a portion
thereof. For corporate customers, the Group indadig makes an assessment with
respect to the timing and amount of write off basadvhether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Group expects no Bggmt recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that areti®n off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with tBeoup’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

(6) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset whendheactual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it traersf the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in whiclhssantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset arasfiexred or in which the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially athefrisks and rewards of ownership and
it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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The Group enters into transactions whereby it feaesassets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet, but retains eithesradubstantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cdlesiransferred assets are not
derecognized.

2. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Comparyctassified as financial
liabilities or equity in accordance with the sulpsta of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and aquity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that eviden@ssdual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.q&ty instruments issued are
recognized as the amount of consideration receleed,the direct cost of issuing.

Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchdsedjriount of the consideration
paid, which includes directly attributable costs récognized as a deduction from
equity. Repurchased shares are classified as tyeabares. When treasury shares
are sold or reissued subsequently, the amountvextés recognized as an increase
in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit the transaction is recognized in
capital surplus or retained earnings (if the capstaplus is not sufficient to be
written down).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measuredaatortized cost or FVTPL. A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if is classified as held-for-trading, it is
a derivative or it is designated as such on inigéalognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gainsl@sgks, including any interest
expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently meaduat amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense areldarexchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss @retognition is also recognized in
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability whés ¢ontractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group désecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows t&f modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new finahtability based on the modified
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terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the défience between the carrying amount
of a financial liability extinguished and the caheiation paid (including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumseaérognized in profit or loss.

() Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are etfffand the net amount presented in
the statement of balance sheet when, and only wihenGroup currently has a

legally enforceable right to set off the amountd @nntends either to settle them on
a net basis or to realize the asset and settleatibty simultaneously.

C. Derivative financial instruments and hedge aotiog

The Group holds derivative financial instruments hedge its foreign
currency and interest rate exposures. Embeddedatiggs are separated from the
host contract and accounted for separately if & kontract is not a financial
asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair valueubSequent to initial
recognition, derivatives are measured at fair valaed changes therein are
generally recognized in profit or loss.

(8) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost drrealizable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the weighted average ce#ttod and includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or conuamnscost, and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their present location and cowditiin the case of manufactured inventories
and work in progress, cost includes an appropshtge of production overheads based on
operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling pincee ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and selling expemecessary to make the sale.

(9) Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group $ignificant influence, but not
control or joint control, over their financial angerating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for usmgduity method and are recognized
initially at cost. The cost of the investment ird#s transaction costs. The carrying amount
of the investment in associates includes goodwibiireg from the acquisition, less any
accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include theu@s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of those associates,adfustments to align their accounting
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policies with those of the Group, from the datewdmich significant influence commences
until the date on which significant influence ceasehe Group recognizes any changes of its
proportionate share in the investee within caitaplus, when an associate’s equity changes
due to reasons other than profit and loss or congm&ve income, which did not result in
changes in actual significant influence.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions betviee Group and an associate are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated Groumterests in the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associatele@r exceeds its interests in an
associate, it discontinues recognizing its shareirtier losses. After the recognized interest
is reduced to zero, additional losses are providedand a liability is recognized, only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constrel obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

When the Group subscribes to additional shares saociate at a percentage different
from its existing ownership percentage, the resgltarrying amount of the investment will
differ from the amount of the Group’s proportionatterest in the net assets of the associate.
The Group records such a difference as an adjustimémvestments, with the corresponding
amount charged or credited to capital surplus. &fweesaid adjustment should first be
adjusted under additional paid in capital. If trediional paid in capital resulting from
changes in ownership interest is not sufficierg, rdmaining difference is debited to retained
earnings. If the Group’s ownership interest is petlidue to the additional subscription to
the shares of the associate by other investorgrthpgortionate amount of the gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive incameelation to that associate will be
reclassified to profit or loss on the same basisvaald be required if the associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabdit

(10) Property, plant and equipment

1. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measareost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciationaaydaccumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plaamd equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate itempfroamponents) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of propeptiyant and equipment is recognized
in profit or loss.

B. Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if ipisbable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will fimithe Group.
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C. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an dssstits residual value and is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over &stimated useful lives of each component
of an item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant agdigment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

(@) Buildings: 2 to 50 years
(b) Machinery and equipment: 1 to 15 years
(c) Other equipment and leased assets: 1 to 25 year

(d) Buildings constitute mainly buildings, mechaiand electrical power equipment,
and related engineering, wastewater treatment ewdge system, etc. Each such
part is depreciated based on its useful life ot®250 years, 25 years, and 4 to 25
years, respectively.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualieslare reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

(11) Lessee
Applicable from January 1, 2019

A. ldentifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assessestvenet contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contcactveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchangedonsideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use ofidemtified asset, the Group assesses
whether:

(@) the contract involves the use of an identifisdet — this may be specified explicitly
or implicitly, and should be physically distinct cepresent substantially all of the
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the [gligr has a substantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified; and

(b) the customer has the right to obtain substiyt# of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

(c) the customer has the right to direct the usthefasset throughout the period of use
only if either:

the customer has the right to direct how and fbatwpurpose the asset is used
throughout the period of use; or
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« the relevant decisions about how and for what ggepthe asset is used are
predetermined and:

— the customer has the right to operate the assmighout the period of use,
without the supplier having the right to changesthoperating instructions;
or

—  the customer designed the asset in a way thdefamenines how and for
what purpose it will be used throughout the penbdse.

At inception or on reassessment of a contractdbiatains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to deake component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the Isagdand and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Group has elected not to separateeasa-tomponents and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single leag®oent.

B. As a leasee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and se ldiability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is ligitmeasured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liabifitjjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plusratigl idirect costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remavarnberlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it isated, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciagdg the straight-line
method from the commencement date to the earlidneoend of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease.témnaddition, the right-of-use
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losgesy, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at theegent value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement dateounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if thater&aiannot be reliably determined, the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, tBeup uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement oe#selliability comprise the following:

(@) fixed payments, including in-substance fixegrpants;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an ind@xrate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under a residligé guarantee; and
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(d) payments for purchase or termination optioret e reasonably certain to be
exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized casgtgithe effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

(a) there is a change in future lease payments@ricom the change in an index or rate;
or

(b) there is a change in the Group’s estimate efdmount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee; or

(c) there is a change in the lease term resultiogy fa change of its assessment on
whether it will exercise an option to purchaseuhderlying asset, or

(d) there is a change of its assessment on whéthail exercise a extension or
termination option; or

(e) there are any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other tlease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of thketfof-use asset, or in profit and loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset bhaen reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to refléet partial or full termination of the
lease for lease modifications that decrease thgesabthe lease, the Group accounts for
the remeasurement of the lease liability by deangathe carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or felirhination of the lease, and recognize in
profit or loss any gain or loss relating to thetgéuor full termination of the lease.

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-asgets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases with 12 months or less and leafSkesv-value assets, including other
equipment. The Group recognizes the lease paynasatgiated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease ter

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determinesagel commencement whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating leaselasgsify each lease, the Group makes an
overall assessment of whether the lease transfetiset lessee substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership incidental to ownigref the underlying asset. If this is
the case, then the lease is a finance lease;,itlment the lease is an operating lease. As
part of this assessment, the Group considers partdicators such as whether the lease
is for the major part of the economic life of theset.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease @wnys, the Group applies IFRS15
to allocate the consideration in the contract.
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Applicable before January 1, 2019

Leases in which the Group assumes substantiallyfdhe risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. On initial reitmyn the lease asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value or thesent value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, treetis accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to the asset.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases@ortioned between the finance
cost and the reduction of the outstanding liabilitfhe finance cost is allocated to each
period during the lease term so as to produce ataonperiodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Other leases are operating leases and are notnigedgin the Group’s consolidated
statements of balance sheets.

Payments made under an operating lease (excludsugance and maintenance expenses)
are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-lrasis over the term of the lease.

Expenditures for obtaining land use rights are gacaed as acquisition cost. Based on the
shorter of the contract period or the estimatedulidde, the cost of land use rights is
amortized over 50 or 99 years.

(12) Intangible Assets
1. Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiarissmeasured at cost, less accumulated
impairment losses.

Expenditure on research activities is recognizegtafit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if éxpenditure can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commbydieasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the Group intends to, and hasciemff resources to, complete
development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwigerecognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, depeb@nt expenditure is measured at cost,
less accumulated amortization and any accumulatpdirment losses.

2. Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by theugrand have finite useful lives are
measured at cost less accumulated amortizatiomamypdccumulated impairment losses.

3. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only whancreases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relafdlsother expenditure, including
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expenditure on internally generated goodwill anahldss, is recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.

4. Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of theefis$ess its residual value, and is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight line ibasver the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from theedhat they are available for use.

(a) Patents and trademarks: 4 to 6 years
(b) Development costs: 10 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residualueal are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the @agramounts of its non-financial assets
(other than inventories and deferred tax assetdgtermine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, thba asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped togetierthe smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use thatangely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash-generating units ("CGU&Yodwill arising from a business
combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGiud are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-denetmit ("CGU") is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to $elue in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value usingre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value oegnand the risks specific to the asset or a
CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoamt of an asset or a CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or |oBsey are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the (Gand then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pacbais.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is noveesed. For other assets, an impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asswmtirying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determinedohéepreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.
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(14) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pagtnt, the Group has a present obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is prob#idé an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions astednined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflebts ¢urrent market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the lipilThe unwinding of the discount is
recognized as interest expense.

A. Site restoration

In accordance with the Group’s published environt@epolicy and applicable legal
requirements, a provision for site restoration @spect of contaminated land and the
related expense are recognized when the land itarmamated. A provision for site
restoration of lease land and the related expemseeaognized over the term of the lease.

B. Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized nvtiee expected benefits to be derived
by the Group from a contract are lower than thevaitable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision isasmged at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the caxttror the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provisioresablished, the Group recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated withctrdtact.

(15) Revenue recognition
1. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideratiohith the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services toustomer. The Group recognizes
revenue when it satisfies a performance obligatgriransferring control of a good or a
service to a customer.

The accounting policies for the Group’s main typesevenue are explained below.
A. Sale of goods

The Group engages mainly in the research, developrmpeduction, design, and sales
of semiconductor ingots and wafers, varistors, eletironics and communication
wafer materials. The Group recognizes revenue vebetrol of the products has been
transferred, being when the products are delivévetthe customer, the customer has
full discretion over the channel and price to dbié products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the custerts acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shippéae specific location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferrée wustomer, and either the customer
has accepted the products in accordance with tee santract, the acceptance
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provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objectivielence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are eled; as this is the point in time
that the Group has a right to an amount of conatder that is unconditional.

B. Product Processing Services

The Group provides processing of the company'symtsdand recognizes the relevant
Revenue during the financial reporting period @& ldbor service.

Revenue recognition for fixed-price contracts isdzhon the ratio of services actually
provided to total services as of the reporting datbich is determined by the
percentage of labor performed to the total amotitahmr to be performed.

If the situation changes, the estimates of revenost, and degree of completion will
be revised, and the increase or decrease in timdpehen the management is aware of
the change in the situation will be reflected ioffiror loss.

Under the fixed price contract, the customer payigedd amount in accordance with
the agreed time schedule. When the services prdwgeeed the payment, the contract
assets are recognized; if the payment exceeds déheces provided, the contract
liabilities are recognized.

If the contract is valued based on the number af$ i which the service is provided,
the Revenue is recognized by the amount in whiehctinsolidated company has the
right to open an invoice. The consolidated compaillyask for a monthly payment
from the customer and will receive the consideratiier opening the invoice.

The Group recognizes the accounts receivable winemgdods are delivered, because
the consolidated company has the right to uncansitly collect the consideration at
that time.

C. Engineering contract

The Group is engaged in the contracting businessot#r power plants. Since the
assets are controlled by the customers at the tifneonstruction, the revenue is
gradually recognized over time based on the praporof the engineering costs
incurred to date to the estimated total contractscoA fixed amount paid by the
customer in accordance with the agreed time scbeddertain changes in
consideration are estimated using expectations frash experience; other changes are
estimated at the most probable amount. The corsetidcompany recognizes revenue
only within the scope of the cumulative Revenuelaevhere it is highly probable that
no significant reversal will occur. If the amourftRevenue recognized has not been
requested, it is recognized as a contract asseth@ncbntract asset is transferred to the
accounts receivable when there is an unconditioglad to the consideration.
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If the degree of completion of the performance gdiion of the construction contract
cannot be reasonably measured, the contract reventexognized only within the
range of expected recoverable costs.

When the consolidated company expects that thetaide cost of performance of an
engineering contract exceeds the economic benegfieated from the contract, the
liability provision for the loss-making contractriscognized.

If the circumstances change, the estimates of tejeocost and completion will be
revised and the changes will be reflected in gainoes when the management is
informed of the change in circumstances and thendment is made.

D. Services

The Group provides services to its customers. Revenom services rendered is
recognized in profit or loss in proportion to thage of completion of the transaction
at the reporting date.

Revenue recognition for fixed-price contracts isdzhon the ratio of services actually
provided to total services as of the reporting dathich is determined by the
percentage of labor performed to the total amotitahmr to be performed.

If the situation changes, the estimates of revenast, and degree of completion will
be revised, and the increase or decrease in ti@dpehen the management is aware of
the change in the situation will be reflected ioffiror loss.

E. Power electric revenue

The company recognized the Power electric revembase on the actual electric units
and electric rate.

2. Financing components

The company does not expect to have any contrdusenthe period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customeérmpayment by the customer exceeds
one year. As a consequence, the company does just ady of the transaction prices for

the time value of money.

(16) Employee Benefits
1. Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contrilmrti pension plans are expensed as the
related service is provided. Prepaid contributiaresrecognized as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future paysienavailable.
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2. Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of definedddfé plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future bérnlefit employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amaamd deducting the fair value of any

plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations isrfprmed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. WViie calculation results in a potential
asset for the Group, the recognized asset is lihtibethe present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refarftbm the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the presgatue of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimumdiung requirements.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabwNityich comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding istfeamd the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognized immedyatebther comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. Greup determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit lighjisset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benbligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the net defined benefit liabiliasset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are néoed) in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or whdaraip curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service or the gaitoss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognigeins and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

3. Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit are expensed as tagdeservice is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expectedbe paid if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amoasta result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimatebhg

(17) Share based payment

The grant date fair value of share based paymeatdsigranted to employees is recognized
as employee expenses, with a corresponding incrieasquity, over the period that the
employees become unconditionally entitled to thewrale. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of amatdsse related services are expected to
be met, such that the amount ultimately recognasedn expense is based on the number of
awards that meet the related services at the gedéte.

The non-vested conditions relating to the sharedaayment incentives are reflected in the
measurement of the fair value of the share-basgth@at and the difference between the
expected and actual results is not subject toigatibn adjustment.

The fair value of the amount payable to employaegspect of share appreciation rights,
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which are settled in cash, is recognized as anrsepavith a corresponding increase in

liabilities, over the period during which the emyges become unconditionally entitled to

payment. The liability is remeasured at each répprtlate and at settlement date based
onthe fair value of the share appreciation rigAtsy changes in the liability are recognized

in profit or loss.

Please refer to note 6(23) for grant date of aesshased payment award.
(18) Income tax

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferwxes$ t&xcept for items related to business
combinations, or items recognized directly in egut other comprehensive income, all
current and deferred taxes are recognized in profiiss.

The Group has determined that interest and pegalélated to income taxes, including
uncertain tax treatment, do not meet the definibtbmcome taxes, and therefore accounted
for them under IAS37.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payableseamivables on the taxable profits

(losses) for the year and any adjustment to thep@yable or receivable in respect of

previous years. The amount of current tax payabte®ceivables are the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or receivedreficts uncertainty related to income

taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates edast substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differencgeden the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposesdaheir respective tax bases. Deferred taxes
are not recognized except for the following:

A. temporary differences on the initial recognitiohassets and liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affeetther accounting nor taxable profits
(losses) at the time of the transaction;

B. temporary differences related to investmentsuhbsidiaries and associates to the extent
that the Group is able to control the timing of tegersal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse ia fbreseeable future; and

C. taxable temporary differences arising on theahiecognition of goodwill.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates thatgrected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reserve, using tax ratestedaor substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and reflect uncertainty relatesthtmme taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsetéf tollowing criteria are met:

A. the Group has a legally enforceable right toageturrent tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

B. the deferred tax assets and the deferred thifities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:
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(@) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend to Eetturrent tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis, or to realize the assets and liabilgiesiltaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax ligi®s or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the camyai@ of unused tax losses, unused tax
credits, and deductible temporary differences ® aktent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against whichythean be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reducédetextent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefits will be realized; hbsueductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

(19) Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company’s basic and dile@things per share attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company. Basic easnpegy share is calculated as the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Comgpdivided by the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding. Dilutechiegs per share is calculated as the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of @@mpany divided by the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjestnfor the effects of all potentially

dilutive ordinary shares, such as employee remtinerthat could be settled in the form of
stock. The Company's potential diluted ordinary rehancludes non-vested shares of
restricted employee right and employee remunerdtian has not been resolved by the
board of directors and has been issued in the &drshares.

(20) Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Groapehgages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expensesu@ingd) revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the Group)er@ing results of the operating
segment are regularly reviewed by the Group’s cbhigdérating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to tip@esat and to assess its performance. Each
operating segment consists of standalone finamd@amation.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgmentsand major sources of estimation
uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with the IFRSs endorsed
by the FSC requires management to make judgmestisyations and assumptions that affect the
application of the accounting policies and the reggbamount of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from theseresdes.

The management continues to monitor the accoungstimates and assumptions. The
management recognizes any changes in the accowstiingates during the period and the impact
of those changes in the following period.

Information about judgments made in applying actiogrpolicies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the conse@lfihancial statements is as follows:

— 37—



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Impairment of property, plant and equipment] ariangible assets

In the process of evaluating the potential impaimtred tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill, the Group is required to make suijecjudgments in determining the
independent cash flows, useful lives, expectedréutncome and expenses related to the
specific asset groups considering of the naturdhef industry. Any changes in these
estimates based on changed economic conditionsigindss strategies and could result in
significant impairment charges or reversal in fatyears. Refer to note 6(11) for further
description of the key assumptions used to detegrthia recoverable amount.

(2) Impairment assessment of goodwill

The assessment of impairment of goodwill requines@roup to make subjective judgments
to identify CGUs, allocate the goodwill to relevadGUs, and estimate the recoverable
amount of relevant CGUs. Refer to note 6(13) fathfer description of the impairment of
goodwill.

The Group’s financial instrument valuation groupndocts independent verification on fair
value by using data sources that are independdiable, and representative of exercise prices.
This financial instrument valuation group also pdritally adjusts valuation models, conducts
back testing, renews input data for valuation medahd makes all other necessary fair value
adjustments to assure the rationality of fair value

The Group strives to use the observable marketsnphen measuring assets and liabilities. The
hierarchy of the fair value categorized by the atibn techniques used is as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active miarker identified assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includdthiw Level 1 that are observable for the assets
or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices)iadirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities thee not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

For any transfer within the fair value hierarcthg Group recognizes the transfer on the reporting
date. For the assumption used in fair value measemg please refer to note 6(30) of the
financial instruments.

Explanation of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Cash on hand $ 12,884 12,175
Demand deposits 20,497,057 10,475,332
Time deposits 13,646,957 26,267,152
Repurchase agreement 744,527 74,472

$ 34,901,425 36,829,131
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Please refer to note 6(25) for the interest ratk and sensitivity analysis of the financial
assets and liabilities of the Group.

(2) Financial assets and liabilities at fair vallmeugh profit or loss

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit o
loss-current:

Overseas securities held $ 1,876,656 -
Privately offered funds - 64,69"
Forward exchange contracts 6,920 81,798
Stocks listed on domestic markets - 177,053
$ 1,883,576 323,548

Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit o
loss- non current:

Privately offered funds $ 95,163 -

Financial liabilities designated as at fair valoetugf
profit or loss:

Forward exchange contract $ 216,632 119
Swap exchange contract 68 -
$ 216,700 119

The Group uses derivative instruments to hedgeaiceturrency risk arising from the
Group’s operating activities. The Group held thiofeing derivative instruments not used
for hedging and accounted them as mandatorily mmedsat fair value through profit or loss
and held-for-trading financial liabilities as of @amber 31, 2019 and 2018:
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2019.12.31
Contract amount (in

thousands) Currency Maturity date
Forward exchange contracts:
Forward exchange USD 21,050 USD against EUR 2020.01.24-
contracts sold 2020.02.26
Forward exchange USD 2,838 USD against KRW 2020.01.23
contracts sold
Forward exchange JPY 19,000,000 JPY against NTD 2020.01.23
contracts purchased
Forward exchange JPY 50,000 JPY against KRW 2020.02.26
contracts purchased
Forward exchange EUR 3,508 EUR against KRW 2020.01.23
contracts purchased
Forward exchange JPY 17,000,000 JPY against NTD 2019.01.15-
contracts purchased 2019.6.14
Swap exchange contracts:
Currency exchange USD 3,000 USD against NTD 2020.3.17

2018.12.31
Contract amount (in

thousands) Currency Maturity date
Forward exchange USD 17,850 USD against EUR 2019.01.24-
contracts sold 2019.02.26
Forward exchange USD 10,197 USD against KRW 2019.01.24
contracts sold
Forward exchange JPY 50,000 JPY against EUR 2019.02.26
contracts purchased
Forward exchange EUR 18 EUR against KRW 2019.01.24
contracts purchased
Forward exchange JPY 100,412 JPY against KRW 2019.01.24
contracts purchased
Forward exchange JPY 17,000,000 JPY against NTD 2019.01.15-
contracts purchased 2019.6.14

Please refer to Note 6 (31) for the remeasured atrreaognized in gain or loss at fair
value.

Please refer to Note 6 (31) for market risk infotioma

The financial assets mentioned above were not ptkdg collateral.
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(3) Financial assets at fair value through othenmehensive income
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive gain or loss:

Domestic booked (OTC) company stock -  $ - 319,427
Actron Technology Corporation

Domestic booked (counter) company stock — - 270,073
United Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.

Domestic booked (OTC) company stock — - 127,920
Phoenix Silicon International Corporation

Domestic non-booked (OTC) company stock - 326,090 352,282
SILFAB SPA stock

Domestic non-booked (OTC) company stock — - 130,764
Powertech Energy Corp.

Domestic non-booked (OTC) company stock - 6,095 4,458
GIGA Electronic Technology Corporation

Total $ 322,185 1,204,924

The Group's investments in these equity instrumargdong-term strategic investments and
are not held for trading purposes and have beagridged as measured at fair value through
other comprehensive gain or loss.

Solartech Energy Corp. (hereinafter referred tdSakartech Energy) and Gintech Energy
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as Gintechrgyne€orporation) and Neo Solar Power
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as Neo Sotawé?) jointly signed the merger contract
on January 29, 2018. The Neo Solar Power was tistirex company (the name of the
company after the merger was changed to United Warle Energy Co., Ltd., hereinafter
referred to as URE), and Gintech Energy and Salarienergy were cancelled. The base
date for the merger is October 1, 2018. Solarteurdy’s shareholders, in accordance with
the issued ordinary shares (including private ptem® of shares and restrictions on
employee rights shares, if issued) they hold, remeW.17 shares of Neo Solar Power’s
shares per share.

The Group was deemed to have sold the shares aft&di Energy, which were measured
at fair value through other comprehensive gainoss|| for the above reasons on October 1,
2018. The fair value of the disposition was NT$ ,388 thousand and the cumulative loss
was NT$ 1,558,196 thousand. The aforementioned [aiivel disposed losses have been
transferred from other equity to retained earnings.

Based on the Group's operating performance coradides, the Group sold the shares of
URE and Phoenix Silicon International Corporatiarhich were measured at fair value

through other comprehensive gain or loss. The Vaiue of the disposition was NT$

313,622 thousand with cumulative disposal loss NIT#38 thousand and 239,723 thousand
with cumulative disposal gain NT$126,095 respetyivdhe aforementioned cumulative

disposed gain and loss have been transferred fther equity to retained earnings.
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Dividend Revenue recognized in 2019 and 2018 waiga\48 and NT$ 12,776 thousands
respectively.

The Group's investments in Actron Technology Caapon has transferred as investment in
using the equity method, please refer to Note6(7).

Powtec ElectroChemical Corp. (hereinafter refeteeds Powtec ElectroChemical) filed for

bankruptcy on February 26, 2020.The Group asseksddowtec ElectroChemical financial

difficulties and recognized the unrealized losdinancial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income of Powtec ElectroChemical.

For market risk information, please refer to Not&5).
The above financial assets are not pledged asedla

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Current:

Corporate debt - Crystalwise Technology $ 240,068 -
Non-Current:

Corporate debt - Crystalwise Technology $ 267,612 281,366

The Group's assessment is to hold the assets tmahgity date to collect the contractual
cash flow, and the cash flows of these financigkets are solely for the payment of the
principal and the interest on the outstanding pp@lcamount. Therefore, since January 1,
2018 financial assets measured at amortized cesteaognized.

In January 2019, the Group purchased the privatgtyeqorporate bonds of Crystalwise
Technology Inc. for a one-year period at a nomambunt of NT$ 250,000 thousands. The
coupon rate and effective interest rate were 2.0@ich mature oddanuary, 2020.

The impairment loss of the financial assets measute amortized cost in 2019 was
NT$25,973 thousand.

Please refer to Note 6 (31) for credit risk infotioa.

The above financial assets are not pledged agealla

(5) Notes and accounts receivable, net

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Notes receivab $ 168,881 187,522

Accounts receivable 8.315,492 9,598,538

Accounts receivable-fair value through other 7,487 42,578
comprehensive income

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (57,611) (61,221)
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Allowance for sales discounts and returns - -
$ 8,434,249 9,767,417

The Group has assessed a portion of its accoures/ables that was held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by selling financiadets; therefore, such accounts receivables were
measured at fair value through other comprehernsoame.

The Group applied the simplified approach to previar its expected credit losses, i.e. the
use of lifetime expected loss provision for allgwables. To measure the expected credit
losses, accounts receivable have been grouped basdthred credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, as well as incorporated forveaiking information.

The loss allowance provision of solar energy bussnéncluding related parties) was
determined as follows:

2019.12.31
Carrying Weighted Loss
amount of average loss allowance
receivables rate provision
Current $ 327,675 0% -
1 to 30 days past due 35,248 0%-2.41% -
More than 91 days past due 43,482 52.55%-100% 41,935
Total $ 406,405 41,935
2018.12.31
Carrying Weighted Loss
amount of average loss allowance
receivables rate provision
Current $ 627,514 0% -
1 to 30 days past due 21,981 0%-1.43% -
31 to 60 days past due 2,009 0%-9.44% -
More than 91 days past due 53,045 59.09%-100% 50,023
Total $ 704,549 50,023

The loss allowance provision of semiconductor bessn(including related parties) was

determined as follows:

2019.12.31
Carrying Weighted Loss
amount of average loss allowance
receivables rate provision
Current $ 7,871,268 0% -
1 to 30 days past due 241,061 0% -
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31 to 60 days past due 17,797  0%-15% 325
61 to 90 days past due 1,385 30% 416
91 to 120 days past due 13,626 50% 6,806
More than 151 days past due 8,269 90%-100% 8,129
Total $ 8,153,406 15,676
2018.12.31
Carrying Weighted Loss
amount of average loss allowance
receivables rate provision
Current $ 8,696,346 0% -
1 to 30 days past due 480,384 0% -
31 to 60 days past due 46,169  0%-15% 3,507
61 to 90 days past due 464 25% 120
91 to 120 days past due 231 50% 115
121 to 150 days past due 408 70% 286
More than 151 days past due 7,170 90%-100% 7,170
Total $ 9,231,172 11,198

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accoumlated to notes and accounts
receivable were as follows:

2019 2018
Balance on January 1 $ 61,221 $ 99,852
Impairment losses recognized(reversed) (2,643) 35,446
Amounts written off - (73,536)
Foreign exchange losses (967) (541)
Balance on December 31 $ 5761 $ 61,221

The other receivable loss allowance provision ef @roup was NT$67,292 thousand
in 2017.
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The Group factored its accounts receivable to mamagdit risks as of each reporting date
as follows:

The Group entered into an agreement with bankadtoif certain of its accounts receivable
without recourse. According to the agreement, withie factoring line, the Group does not
have to ensure the ability of debtors to pay whansferring the rights and obligations. The
Group derecognized the above accounts receivablemube it has transferred substantially
all of the risks and rewards of their ownershipd ah does not have any continuing
involvement in them.

As of the reporting dates, details of accountsivadxe factoring were as follows:

(Unit: Foreign currency/JPY in thousands)

December 31, 2019

Range of
Amounts Factoring  Advanced Interest
Purchaser derecognized Line Amount Rate  Collateral
Mitsubishi UFJ, etc. $ 329,440 - 329,440 - 1.1759 None
1.475%
December 31, 2018
Range of
Amounts Factoring  Advanced Interest
Purchaser derecognized Line Amount Rate  Collateral
Mitsubishi UFJ, etc. $ 502,978 - 502,978 - 1.1759 None
1.475%

The factoring agreements above include a factdmmgthat is intended for revolving use.

The notes and accounts receivable mentioned abere ot pledged as collateral.

Inventories
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Finished goods and products $ 2,096,373 2,047,805
Work in progress 2,085,206 2,160,209
Raw materials 3,216,714 3,673,353

7,398,293 7,881,367
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Component of operating cost are as follows:

2019 2018
Cost of sales $ 42,202,259 48,156,805
Accrual of impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment (Note 6 (11)) - 1,497,261
Reversal of inventory valuation (109,158) (37,345)
Unallocated fixed manufacturing expense 266,522 536,967
Provision (Note 6 (18)) 3,883,063 443,404

46,242,686 50,597,092

The inventories mentioned above were not pledgexbitateral.
(7) Investments accounted for using equity method

A summary of financial information for investmemtscounted for using the equity method
at the reporting date is as follows:

Main Percentage of equity
location/ ownership interests and
Names of affiliated  Relationship with the country voting rights
companies Company registered in  2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Actron Technology Mainly engages in the Taiwan
Corporation. manufacturing of
electronic component . 15.50% -
Taiwan Special The main business is Taiwan
Chemicals manufacturing of
Corporation semiconductor special
(hereinafter referredgas and chemical
to as Taiwan materials.
Special Chemicals) 30.93% 30.93%
Cathy Sunrise The main business is Taiwan
Corporation manufacturing of power
(hereinafter referredgeneration, transmission
to as Cathy Sunriseand distribution
machinery. 30.00%  30.00%
Crystalwise Mainly engages in the Taiwan
Technology Inc.  manufacturing and
trading of optoelectronic
wafers and substrate
material. 41.93%  40.11%
Hongwang The main business is Taiwan
Investment Co., Ltcgeneral trading
(Hereinafter
referred to as
Hongwang)(Note) 30.98% 24.39%
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Accu Solar The main business is Taiwan

Corporation providing solar modules.

(Hereinafter

referred to as TSCS) 24.70% 24.70%

Note: It is transferred from GlobalWafers’ investre

1. The affiliated companies that are significantthe parent company and booked with
TPEX.

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Crystalwise Technology Inc. $ 1,030,041 791,079

The following consolidated financial information significant affiliates has been
adjusted according to individually prepared IFR®ficial statements of these affiliates:

Financial Summary of Crystalwise Technology:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Current Assets $ 1,069,050 1,055,915
Non-current Assets 1,513,959 2,134,030
Current Liabilities (2,027,371) (1,225,269)
Non-current Liabilities (843,098) (872,017)
Net assets attributed to owner of the inve $ 712,540 1,092,659
parent company

2019 2018
Operating revenues $ 617,436 1,317,193
Loss from continuing operations $ (751,496) (480)7
Other comprehensive income (49,885) (59,599)
Total comprehensive income attributed to the Gro8p __ (801,381) (509,379)
Share of net assets of affiliates as of
January 1 $ 415,391 849,211
Recognized change in equity net worth of affiliated
companies under equity method this period 204,960
Change in equity of affiliates accounted for using
equity method (12,106) 124
Operating income attributed to the Group and inmpairt
loss (307,020) (410,495)
Comprehensive income attributed to the Group and
other (20,671) (23,449)
Share of net assets of affiliates as of
December 31 $ 280554 415,391
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2. The Group’s financial information for investmemtccounted for using the equity method
that are individually insignificant was as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Carrying amount of individually insignificant
associates’ equity $ 2,967,983 1,626,505

In 2019 and 2018, the Group’s share of the netmmecof associates was as follows

2019 2018
Attributable to the Group:
Net loss of the period $ (37,410) (53,306)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 291,516 (149,273)
Total comprehensive income $ (254,106) (202,579)

3. The difference in the investment cost of thelgedded investment and the fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the investee is Ipaittributable to the intangible assets.

4. Based on the group's operating performance derations, the Group increased
Crystalwise Technology Inc. capital by $204,960ugend in May 2019. The difference
between the investment cost and the net equityevalfi $12,101 thousand was
recognized as capital surplus, and the sharesialehsed from 40.13% to 41.93%.

5. The Group obtained significant influence sificavas elected as corporate director of
Actron Technology Corporation in May 2019. Therefathe original account under fair
value through other comprehensive income finaragakts was removed and reclassified
as investment accounted for using the equity met#tddir value. The amount of profit
related to the investment that was previously racaagl in other comprehensive income
NT$237,118 thousand that will not be reclassifiedptofit or loss was reclassified to
retained earnings. In addition, between October &wtember 2019, the Group
increased capital to Actron Technology Corporatigncash and continued to purchase
its shares, and the difference between the invedtowst and the net equity value was
NT$376,638 thousand recognized as capital surplus.

6. The Group acquired equity interests of Hongwamgestment Co., Ltd. for $109,760
thousand in 2019, which was recognized as additiomsvestments accounted for using
the equity method. The difference of $4,063 thoddagtween the investment cost and
the equity is recognized in additional paid in talpiOwnership increased from 24.39%
to 30.98% as a result of the acquisition.

7. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2b&8ash dividends of the invested
companies were $55,068 thousand and $6,422 thousaspectively, which were
recognized as deductions of investments accounteasing the equity method.
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8. The investments accounted for using equity otettmentioned above were not pledged
as collateral as of December 31, 2019 and 2018

(8) Changes in a parent's ownership interest ubaidiary
1. Acquisitions ofadditional shares of the subsidiary

The Group did not have any transaction with nont@dimg interests in 2018.In March
2019, the Group acquired an additional interesglimbalWafers for NT$91,006 in cash,
increasing its ownership from 50.84 to 50.94%.

The effects of the changes in shareholdings wefellasvs:

2018
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests pursdth $ 41,341
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests attter equity (92,445)
Capital surplus differences between considerati@hcarrying
amounts subsidiaries acquired $ (51,104

2. The subsidiary bought back the treasury shadesd result in the Group loss of control

GlobalWafers implemented the treasury stock in 2@l bought back the
company's shares at Taiwan Stock Exchange, whareased the company's interest in
GlobalWafers by 0.23%.

The impact of the changes of the Company's equitylobalWafers on the equity
attributable to the parent company is as follows:

2018
Equity deduction after the subsidiary buying tregsinares $ 194,600
Capital surplus - change of investments accourdedding equity
method 194,600

(9) Material non-controlling interests of subsrika

The material non-controlling interests of subsidismere as follows:

% of ownership interests
under non-controlling

Main business interests as well as the

place / company voting rights
Name of subsidiary registered country  2019.12.31 2018.12.31
GlobalWafers Taiwan 48.83% 48.83%

The following information of the aforementioned sidiaries have been prepared in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Patipa of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers. Included in these information are the failue adjustment made during the
acquisition and relevant difference in accountingh@ples between the Group as at the
acquisition date. Intragroup transactions wereetiatinated in this information.
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2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Current assets $ 51,492,745 53,200,515
Non-current assets 45,093,008 36,621,606
Current liabilities (26,910,651) (24,422,441)
Non- current liabilities (24,601,852) (22,243,567)

Net assets 45,067,015 43,156,113
Non-controlling interests 6,235 16,658
2019 2018
Sales revenue 58,094,331 59,063,510
Net incomu 13,635,656 13,633,771
Other comprehensive income (841,189) 431,248
Comprehensive income 12.794.467 14.065.019
Profit, attributable to non-controlling interests (8,439) 3.098
Comprehensive income, attributable to non-contrglli
interests (9,996) 9,762
2019 2018
Net cash flows from operating activit 17,388,898 36,178,722
Net cash flows from investing activis (12,434,497) (6,368,165)
Net cash flows from financing activiti (6,784,347) (13,767,728)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents (562,865) 377,132
Net increase (loss) in cash and cash equive $ (2,392,811) 16.419.961

(10) Loss control of subsidiaries

The Group disposed all of its shares in Sunriséd=R¥ with a consideration of NT$144,241
thousand at the end of March 2019 and recognizédyai@ on disposal of NT$69,104
thousand under other gains and losses in conseticahtements of comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities ohr&ae PV Five at the end of March 2019
was as follow:
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Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,564
Trade receivables 1,97¢
Current assets 302
Property, plant and equipment 231,584
Non-current Assets 36,202
Current liabilities (165,269)
Non-current liabilities (36,222)
Carrying amount of net assets $ 75,137

The Group disposed all of its shares in SunriseER¢tric Power Two with a consideration
of NT$47,770 thousand at the end of March 2019 rasdgnized net gain on disposal of
NT$3.480 thousand under other gains and losses adnsotidated statements of
comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities ohi&ae PV Five at the end of March 2019
was as follow:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,779
Trade receivables 1,26t
Current assets 5,988
Property, plant and equipment 121,932
Non-current Assets 36,812
Current liabilities (104,050)
Non-current liabilities (36,436)
Carrying amount of net assets $ 44,290

For related parties transactions, please refeote M.
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(11) Property, plant and equipment

1. The movements of cost and depreciation of tlugpgnty, plant and equipment of the
Group were as follows:

Constructio
nin

Machiner progress and
y Other quarantined
Land Building equipment equipment _equipment Total
Cost:
Balance of January 1, 2019 $ 3,466,0348,593,462 60,038,560 4,634,177 3,379,135 90,111,368
Additions - 16,715 143,401 416,447 8,514,621 9,091,184
Disposals - (41,964) (4,364,736) (80,522) (9,845) (4,497,067)
Reclassification 3,238 521,618 1,32B,50 223,099 (2,765,898) (689,438)
Transfer and other - - (345) 56,945 (739) 55,861
Effect of changes in exchange  (61,912)  (309,943)  (929,293) (79,999) (266,903) (1,648,050)
rates
Balance of December 31, $ 3,407,360 18,779,888 56,216,092 5,170,147 8,850,371 92,423,858
2019
Balance of January 1, 2018 $ 3,408,7917,896,097 56,760,858 4,280,713 2,548,249 84,894,708
Additions - 20,569 423,930 538,618 5,786,780 6,769,897
Disposition (49,905) (292,307) (2,630,918) (553,415) (2,352) (3,528,897)
Reclassification - 319,147 3,656,152 254,317 (4,229,616) -
Transfer and other - 68,307 452,284 26,512 (725,585) (178,482)
Effect of changes in exchange 107,148 581,649 1,376,254 87,432 1,659 2,154,142
rates
Balance of December 31, $ 3,466,034 18,593,462 60,038,560 4,634,177 3,379,135 90,111,368
2018
Depreciation and impairment
loss:
Balance of January 1, 2019  $ 9,150,708 41,208,206 2,312,194 1,705 52,672,813
Depreciation for the year 763,046 3,653,004 422,887 - 4,838,937
Disposals (41,716) (3,906,267) (65,238) (1,705) (4,014,926)
Reclassification 177  (686,600) (3,015) - (689,438)
Transfer and other - (345) 14,476 - 14,131
Effect of changes in exchange - (106,477)  (505,674) (62,223) - (674,374)
rates
Balance of December 31, $ - 9,765,738 39,762,324 2,619,081 - 52,147,143
2019
Balance of January 1, 2018 $ 8,026,379 37,081,741 2,257,780 - 47,365,900
Depreciation for the year 759,686 4,397,963 470,584 - 5,628,233
Impairment loss 328,088 1,128,814 38,654 1,705 1,497,261
Disposal (285,851) (2,524,419) (526,912) - (3,337,182)
Transfer and other (8,548) (147,653) 57,877 - (98,324)
Effect of changes in exchange - 330,954 1,271,760 14,211 - 1,616,925
rates
Balance of December 31, $ - 9,150,708 41,208,206 2,312,194 1,705 52,672,813
2018

Carrying amounts:

December 31, 2019
January 1, 2019
December 31, 2018

$ 3.407,360 9,014,150 16.453.768 2,561,066 8.850,371 40.276.715
$ 3408791 9,869,718 19,679.117 2,022,933 2,548,249 37,528,808
$ 3,466,034 9,442,754 18,830,354 2,321,983 3,377,430 37,438,555
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2. Impairment loss

In the fourth quarter of 2018, the consolidated pany evaluated that as the production
line of the solar energy division was affected hg global economy, the production
output declined. Therefore, the recoverable amainthe production line must be

evaluated.

The solar energy production line of the consolidatempany is a cash-generating unit
whose recoverable amount is based on its valuesénas of December 31, 2018. The
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipimenhigher than its recoverable
amount, so the impairment loss is recognized as NA$7,261 thousands, which is
included in the operating cost of the consolidatedme statement.

Based on the assessment in 2019, the recoveraldenawas higher than its carrying
amount and no impairment loss was recognized.

The pre-tax discount rate of estimated value in92&id 2018 were 7.39% and 8.94%,
respectively.

3. Guarantees

Property, plant and equipment was pledged as eddliator long term borrowings, short
term borrowings and credit lines. Please referote 8.

(12) Right-of-use assets

The Group leases many assets including land, Ingidimachinery and other equipment. The carrying
amounts about leases were presented below:

Other
Land Buildings Machinery equipment  Total
Carrying amounts:
Balance at December 31, 20198 569,244 238,606 27,257 78,502 913,609
2019
Additions $ 10,464
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Land $ 44,069
Buildings 54,700
Machinery 11,316
Other equipment 81,404
$ 191,489

The Group leases buildings, machinery and equipnutadsified as property, plant and
equipment under the finance lease for the yearcebeeember 31, 2018. Please refer to note
6(17). The Group leases lands, offices, warehoaiségactory facilities under an operating
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lease. Please refer to note 6(19).

The impairment loss assessment, please refer ¢oGidL).

(13) Intangible assets

The cost and amortization of the intangible assktse Group were as follows:
Patentand pevelopment

Goodwill trademark cost Total
Costs:
Balance of January 1, 2019 $ 2,488,317 1,704,483 160,515 4,353,315
Disposals - - (50,711) (50,711)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (67,261) (1,738) (5,133) (74,132)
Balance of December 31,2019 $ 2,421,056 1,702,745 104,671 4,228,472
Balance of January 1, 2018 $ 2,429,026 1,702,225 164,472 4,295,723
Effect of changes in exchange rates 59,291 2,258 (3,957) 57,592
Balance of December 31,2018 $ 2,488,317 1,704,483 160,515 4,353,315
Amortization:
Balance of January 1, 2019 $ - 666,222 37,696 703,918
Current amortization - 332,113 15,767 347,880
Disposals - - (49,570) (49,570)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - (1,154) (185) (1,339)
Balance of December 31,2019 $ - 997,181 3,708 1,000,889
Balance of January 1, 2018 $ - 333,694 22,895 356,589
Current amortization - 331,763 16,576 348,339
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 765 (1,775) (1,010)
Balance of December 31, 2018 $ - 666,222 37,696 703,918
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2019 $ 2,421,056 705,564 100,963 3,227,583
January 1, 2019 $ 2,429,026 1,368,531 141,577 3,939,134
December 31, 2018 $ 2488317 1,038,261 122,819 3,649,397

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 208,amortization expenses of
intangibles assets recognized under operating eggein the statements of comprehensive
income amounted to $347,880 thousand, and $3483888and, respectively.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill walicated to the semiconductor

business. The Group’s goodwill has been testednipairment at least once at the end of
each annual reporting period and the recoverabteuatris determined based on discounted
cash flows.

Based on the result of the Group’s assessmeng th@o indication of goodwill impairment.
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The intangible assets mentioned above were nogpteds collateral.

(14) Short-term borrowings
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Unsecured bank loans $ 10,465,075 9,217,684
Purchase of materials loan - 117,125
$ 11,465,075 9,334,809
Unused credit lines 28,430,716 23,333,968
Range of interest rates at year end 0.70% -3.00% _0.76% -3.88%

For assets pledged as collateral for borrowingsag# refer to note 8.
(15) Long-term borrowings

The details were as follows:

_2019.12.31

Amount
Unused credit lines $ 400,000

2018.12.31
Range of
interest rates at

Currency year end expiry date Amount
Unsecured bank loansNTD 1.04%-1.18% 2020.06-2020.11 $ 1,159,000
Secured Bank Loans  NTD 1.28% 2022.01-2033.01 881,200
Total $ 2,040,200
Unused credit lines $ 301,000

For assets pledged as collateral for borrowingsag# refer to note 8.
(16) Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities of the@r were as follows:

December 31,

2019
Current(recognized under other current liabilities) $ 178,91.
Non-current (recognized under other non-current litbkd) $ 752,48

For the maturity analysis, please refer to not@p{Binancial instruments”.

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were devis:

— 55—



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year

ended
December 31,
2019
Interest on lease liabilities $ 12,051
Variable lease payments not included in the measeme of lease
liabilities $ 880
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 15,564
Expenses relating to leases of low-value asset)@ixg
short-term leases of low-value assets $ 6,054

The amounts recognized in the statement of casisflwas as follows:

For the year
ended December
31, 2019
Total cash outflow for leases $ 235,576

1. Land and Buildings lease

The Group leases land and buildings for its facaihd office space. The leases of office
space typically run for a period of 20 years. Sdeases include an option to renew the
lease for an additional period of the same duratiter the end of the contract term.

Land leases' additional rent payments that aredbasechanges in local price indices
and the public facilities construction costs reested annually in each park will be
adjusted after being assessed.

2. Other leases

The Group leases vehicles and equipment, with leases of two to five years. In some
cases, the Group has options to purchase the adseis end of the contract term; in
other cases, it guarantees the residual valueedetised assets at the end of the contract
term.

(17) Financial lease liabilities
The Group acquired portion of its property, plant aquipment through finance lease.

Related finance lease liabilities were recognizedather current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as follows:
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2018.12.31
Future Present value of
minimum lease minimum lease
payments Interest payments
Within 1 year $ 9,102 (1,315) 7,787
1-5 years 21,995 (1,390) 20,605
$ 31.097 (2,705) 28,392

(18) Provision

The details of the changes in the Group’s provisiene as follows:

Site Onerous
restoration contract Total

Balance of January 1, 2019 $ 64,651 960,292 1,024,943
Provisions made during the year 9,688 4,193,975 4,203,663
Provisions used during the year (11,232) (309,368) (320,600)
Effect of changes in exchange (1,102) - (1,102)
rates

Balance of December 31, 201% 62,005 4,844,899 4,906,904
Current $ 10,307 221,949 232,256
Non-current 51,698 4,622,950 4,674,648
Total $ 62,005 4,844,899 4,906,904
Balance of January 1, 2018 $ 62,895 513,377 576,272
Provisions made during the year 5,620 533,292 538,912
Provisions used during the year (6,255) (89,253) (95,508)
Effect of changes in exchange 2,391 2,876 5,267
rates

Balance of December 31, 201&% 64,651 960,292 1,024,943
Current $ 10,074 - 10,074
Non-current 54,577 960,292 1,014,869
Total $ 64,651 960,292 1,024,943

1. Site restoration

Under the lease contract, if the Group does nenohto extend its leasehold, the Group
needs to restore the plants. The Group estimageprtivision based on the lease terms
and in accordance with the Group’s published emvirental policy and applicable legal
requirements. A provision for site restoration i®d® in respect of environmental
cleanup costs.
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2. Onerous contract

The Group entered into several non cancellable teng material supply agreements
with the suppliers of silicon materials. The Groagrees to purchase the required
quantity of raw materials on schedule based on dbetractual price during the
commitment periods and makes a non refundable pnegrat to the suppliers. The
suppliers need to deliver the required quantitya@f materials to the Group according to
the contract. Provisions for the onerous contragie made based on contractual terms
and were recognized as cost of sales. For theecedgreement, please refer to note 9.

(19) Operating lease
1. Lease of lessee

The rent payment of the irrevocable operating le@sas follows:

2018.12.31
Within 1 year $ 199,460
1-5 years 680,949
Over 5 years 539,558
$ 1,419,967

For the year 2018, rental costs from operating eeasf $249,592 thousand were
recognized as expenses in profit or loss.

The Group entered into operating lease agreematitsQovalent Materials Corporation
for the rental of land, buildings, and other equgmmin Oguni, Taino and Tokuyama.
All the lease agreements covered the period fromeNter 30, 2011 to March 31,
2035. The aggregate future rental payment is $30tidusand each year.

The Group entered into a land lease agreement thiéh Hsinchu Science Park
Administration for the plant located in the Hsincl8cience Park. The land lease
agreement has a lease term covering a period frotab@r 1, 2000 to December 31,
2037. According to the lease agreement, rent igestbo adjustment based on the
current land value which is announced by the gawemt. The annual rental is
approximately $41,764 thousand.

The consolidated company leased land and buildiagenals from Ming Yang Co., Ltd.
for the expansion of production capacity and thedigy. The lease period lasted from
July 2015 to July, 2025 for a total of ten yearsrsBant to the lease term, the rent is
reviewed every two years. The rent payment is atdlii$ 1,890 thousands per month.

To set up solar power plant, the consolidated campaase the roof of buildings and
land to install solar power equipment. The leaseodavas from December 2016 to June
2038. Part of the agreed rental expenses are loasaatertain percentage of the revenue
generated. For a fixed-rate lease, the annuaiseftout NT$ 3,344 thousands.
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2. Prepaid Rent — Long Term

In 2018, the Group entered into operating leaseeagents for land use right, with
the lease terms of 50 years and 99 years, respBgctand rentals were paid once. The
land use right of one of the subsidiaries was fearsd to the assets to be sold in the
fourth quarter of 2017 due to the expected salproperty, plant and equipment, and
was accounted for under other current assets. Xjpenses for profit and loss reported in
2018 were NT$ 225 thousands. As of December 318,20 balance that had not been
amortized was NT$ 7,538 thousand. The above atsdts sold were sold in the first
guarter of 2018.

(20) Employee benefits

1. Defined benefit plan

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at geat value and plan asset at fair value
was as follows:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Total present value of obligations $ (8,436,845) (8,164,777)
Fair value of plan assets 5,489,559 4,994,981
Recognized liabilities for defined benefit obligats $ (2,947.286) (3,169,796)

The details of the account are as follows:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Recognized assets for defined benefit obligations $ 3,104 3,233
Recognized liabilities for defined benefit obligats (2,950,390) (3,173,029)
$  (2,947,286) (2,898,535)

The plans entitle a retired employee to receiveeasipn benefit based on years of
service prior to retirement.

(1) Movements in present value of the defined bienbfigations

The movements in present value of the defined ltemigfgations of the Group were

as follows:
2019 2018
Defined benefit obligations at January 1 $ 8,164,77 8,176,190
Current service cost and interesst 489,118 463,686
Re measurements for defined benefit obligations
- Actuarial gains and losses arising fi
experience adjustments 11,528 (25,922)
- Actuarial gains andlosses resulting fro
changes in demographic assumptions 371,933 (172,289)
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- Actuarial gains and losses resulting fi

changes in financial assumptions 78,187 72,519
Benefits paid (493,490) (573,870)
(185,208) 224,463

Effect of changes in exchange rates
$ 8,436,845 8,164,777

Defined benefit obligations at December 31

(2) Movements in fair value of defined benefit pEssets

The movements in fair value of the defined ben@fin assets of the Group were as
follows:

2019 2019

Fair value of the plan assets at January 1 $ 4,994,981 5,277,655
Interest income 160,435 144,935
Re measurements for defined benefit obligations

- Return on plan asset (excluding interest revenue) 641,034 (391,115)
Contributions made 174,797 221,095
Benefits paid (336,313) (416,105)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (145,375) 158,516

$ 5,489,559 4,994,981

Fair value of the plan assets at December 31

The Group allocates pension funds in accordande té& Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the LraBetirement Fund, and such
funds are managed by the Bureau of Labor Fundsisiyrof Labor. With regard to
the utilization of the funds, minimum earnings $H#& no less than the earnings
attainable from two year time deposits with interases offered by local banks.

The Group’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserveoant balance amounted to
$249,111 thousand, as of December 31, 2019. Fornmtion on the utilization of
the labor pension fund assets, including the asid@tation and yield of the fund,
please refer to the website of the Bureau of L&wds, Ministry of Labor.

Under the employee defined benefit plans of a Geulgsidiary in Korea, plan assets
comprised of time deposits bearing annual intaedss ranging from 1.74%~2.20%.

In ltaly, the Group’ s subsidiary contributes anocam to the National Social
Security Pension Fund (INPS) for the employee @efinenefit plan.

Under the employee defined benefit plans of thdiestocated in the United States,
plan assets are comprised of trust funds with idiffe grades of risks and returns.
Plan asset portfolio consists of a variety of ficiah instruments including cash,
equity securities, and income funds.
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(3) Changes in the effect of the asset ceiling
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was nateffehe asset ceiling.
(4) Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized in profit or loss for theu were as follows:

2019 2018

Current service costs $ 472,005 445,871
Net interest of net liabilities for defined benefit (143,322) (127,120)
obligation

$ 328,683 318,751
Operating Costs $ 282,476 270,245
Selling expenses 27,854 13,750
Administrative expenses 8,847 19,318
Research and development expenses 9,506 15,438

$ 328,683 318,751

(5) Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the repgrtiate were as follows:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Discount rate 0.32%-3.04% 0.26%-4.05%
Future salary increase rate 1.33%-9.969%4..33%-9.96%

The estimated amount of contribution to be madébyGroup to the defined benefit
plans for the one year period after the reportiaig ds $635,969 thousand.

The weighted average durations of the defined lieoigiigation are 4 years to 17.87
years

(7) Sensitivity analysis

When the actuarial assumptions had changed 0.25%the December 31, 2019 and
2018, the impact on the present value of the déflsenefit obligation would be as

follows:
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The impact to the defined
benefit obligations

Increased by  Decreased by

0.25% 0.25%
December 31, 2019
Discount rate $ (203,951) 212,482
Future salary increase rate 93,533 (87,128)
December 31, 2018
Discount rate $ (183,551) 192,481
Future salary increase rate 80,785 (76,787)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting aatené of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, assuming other assumptions remaintacdnsvould have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shownvabo The method used in the
sensitivity analysis is consistent with the caltiola of pension liabilities in previous
periods.

There was no change in the method and assumptieed in the preparation of
sensitivity analysis for 2019 and 2018.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Group contributes at the rate of 6% of eachleyep’s monthly wages to the labor
pension personal account at the Bureau of Labaurémee in accordance with the
provisions of the Labor Pension Act. Under thisimed contribution plan, the
Company’s contribution to the Bureau of Labor I@swe requires no additional legal or
constructive obligations thereafter.

The pension costs of the Group’s Taiwan compamiesried from contributions to the
defined contribution plan were $85,230 thousand $88,148 thousand for the years
2019 and 2018, respectively. Such contributionseweade to the Bureau of the Labor
Insurance.

The total periodic pension costs of other subsiesamwere recognized as current
expenses in accordance with the local regulatidribedr respective jurisdictions where
they are domiciled.

The foreign subsidiaries recognized the pensiotsaafis$97,203 thousand and $80,721
thousand for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(21) Income tax

1.

Income tax expenses

The components of income tax expenses in 2019 @b8 Rere as follows:
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2019 2018
Current tax expense $ 4,117,829 2,640,682
Deferred tax expense
Temporary differences 910,995 1,908,161
Adjustment in tax rate - 133,910
910,995 2,042,071
Income tax expenses $ 5,028,824 4,682,753

The amounts of income tax (benefit) recognizedthreocomprehensive income in 2019
and 2018 were as follows:
2019 2018

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Remeasurement from defined benefit obligatiogs 120.951 (68,152)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently taitprof

or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
financial statements $ (305,271) 102.154

Reconciliations of income tax and income beforemme tax for 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

2019 2018

Income before income tax $ 13,924,169 13,318,233
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 2,784,834 2,663,647
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction 504,291 353,279
Shares of profit of foreign subsidiaries accourfted 1,697,507 2,022,449

using equity method
Tax effect of permanent differences 163,919 391,720
Adjustment in tax rate - 133,910
Basic income tax 4,840 -
Tax preference of Returning Overseas Funds to (390,785) -

Taiwan
Investment tax credits (144,840) (198,951)
Changes in unrecognized temporary differences and 409,058 (683,301)

others

5,028,82 4,682,753
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2. Deferred Income tax assets and liabilities

(1) The deferred tax assets have not been recafimzespect of the following items:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences $ 721,216 1,444,153
Tax loss 679,200 611,452

2,400,416 2,055,605

The R.O.C. Income Tax Act allows net losses, assaesl by the tax authorities, to
offset taxable income over a period of ten yearsldoal tax reporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized pecesf these items because it is
not probable that future taxable profit will be dable against which the Company
can utilize the benefits therefrom.

As of December 31, 2019, the information of the @p‘s unused tax losses for
which no deferred tax assets were recognized didlaws:

Loss to be Deadline for
Annual losses deducted deduction
2012 (verified) $ 1,403,648 2022
2013 (verified) 9,728 2023
2017 (verified) 1,021,784 2027
2018(declared) 960,839 2028
$ 3,395,999

(2) The deferred tax liabilities have not been gegped in respect of the following
items:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Aggregate amount of temporary differences$ (997,762) (673,788)
related to investments in subsidiaries

The Group is able to control the timing of the msa of the temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries aseaeMber 31, 2019 and 2018. Also,
it is probable that the temporary differences wit reverse in the foreseeable future.
Hence, such temporary differences were not recegras deferred tax liabilities.
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(3) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

o Effect of
Recognized Recz?k:‘e'ie‘j " changes in
inprofitor  comprenen  €Xchange
2019.1.1 loss sive income rates 2019.12.31
Assets:

Allowance for

inventory

valuation $ 198554 (16,189) - (4,687) 177,678
Tax loss 29,726 83,084 - (3,768) 109,042
Defined benefit

obligations 395,594 (44,377) 101,353 (3,912) 448,658
Investment

accounted for

using equity

method 109,783 40,399 20,490 - 170,672
Expected credit

loss of accounts

receivable 112,479 (13,458) - (5,741) 93,280
Depreciation life

differences of

property, plant

and equipment 166,495 107 - (3,035) 163,567
Unrealized

exchange losses 114144 17,625 - (1,323) 130,446
Other 388,068 258,352 - (12,127) 634,293

$ 1,514,843 325,543 121,843 (34,593)__ 1,927,636
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Recognized Effect of
Recognized in other changes in
in profitor comprehen exchange
2019.1.1 loss sive income rates 2019.12.31

Liabilities:

Investment
accounted for
using equity
method

Depreciation life
differences of
property, plant
and equipment

Fair value
adjustment for
the net assets
acquired in

E(L)jrs;:rk;?nsastions (435,519) 15,224 - 9,963  (410,332)

Other (11,704) _ (392,056)__ (203.,438) (11,747)__ (618,945)
$ (3,664,664)_(1,236,538) 62,477 24,849 _ (4,813,876)

$ (2,487,625)  (710,856) 265,915 - (2,932,566)

(729,816)  (148,850) - 26,633  (852,033)

Recognized Recognizedin  Effect of
other

in the __ changes in
comprehensive
Revenue Revenue exchange
2018.1.1 statement statement rates 2018.12.31
Assets:
Allowance for
inventory
valuation $ 178,021 20,693 - (160) 198,554
Tax loss 408,709 (369,057) - (9,926) 29,726
Defined benefit
obligations 294,438 44,631 43,731 12,794 395,594
Equity method
investments 427,265 21,813 (339,295) - 109,783

Expected credit

loss of accounts

receivable 9,987 100,992 - 1,500 112,479
Depreciation life

differences of

property, plant

and equipment 265,569 (97,796) - (1,278) 166,495
Unrealized

exchange losses 88,052 24,793 - 1,299 114,144
Other 342,691 38,731 - 6,646 388,068
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$ 2,014,732 (215,200)__ (295,564) 10,875_ 1,514,843

Liabilities:

Investment

accounted for

using equity

method $ (1,073,051) (1,676,136) 261,562 - (2,487,625)
Depreciation life

differences of

property, plant

and equipment (547,537) (163,177) - (19,102) (729,816)
Fair value

adjustment for

the net assets

acquired in

business

combinations (436,625) 14,842 - (13,736) (435,519)
Other (9,058) (2,400) - (246) (11,704)

$ (2,066,271)_(1,826,871) 261,562 (33.084) _ (3.664.664)

3. Assessment of tax filings

As of December 31, 2019, income tax returns ofGbhepany for the years through
2017 were assessed by the tax authority.

(22) Capital and other equity

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the authorizednoon stock of the Company
amounted to NT$8,000,000 thousand, which was divide 800,000 thousand shares, with
a par value of $10 per share, of which $200,000¢hod was reserved for employee stock
options, convertible preferred stock, and convkstiborporate bonds. The issued and
outstanding shares of common stock amounted to NBR3367 thousand and NT$
5,863,207 thousand respectively.

Reconciliation of shares outstanding for 2019 adtiB2was as follows:
Common stock

2019 2018
Opening balance at January 1 582,845 580,504
new shares with restricting employee rights,
restriction lifted 1,646 2,341
Closing balance at December 31 584,491 582,845

1. Issuance of common stock

The Company increased capital in GDRs of $610,0@fugand, and issued 61,000
thousand shares of common stock on the Luxembour§eptember 9, 2010. The price
issued per share was US$2.9048. The total isswanoeant is US$177,193 thousand. The
cash increase was approved by the Financial SigpeyCommission No. 0990041383
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Letter on August 13, 2010. All shares issued wexiel pnd registered on September 9,
2010. The total amount issued was US$177,193. €hamount issued was US$174,931
thousand after deducting the related agent cost2|268 thousand, was equivalent to
NT$5,580,288 thousand on the day's closing excharajes. The total premium
amounting to $4,958,757 thousand was recognizechpital surplus after deducting the
related issuance cost of $11,531 thousand.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, due to the rasmmnof employees, the recovered

and written off restricted employee shares were tBiolsand shares and 251 thousand
shares respectively. As of December 31, 2018, tvere still 15 thousand shares whose
legal registration procedures are unfinished andgeized as pending share capital.

2. Capital surplus

The balances of capital surplus were as follows:
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Additional paid in capital $ 11,641,320 11,862,668

Difference between the consideration and the
carrying amount of subsidiaries’ share acquired or

disposed 2,065,254 2,441,893
Capital surplus recognized under the equity method 6,665,682 6,568,293
Treasury stock transactions 33,314 33,314
New restricted employee she 60,522 244,849
Employee stock options, etc. 606,503 606,275

$ 21,072,595 21,757,292

According to the R.O.C Company Act, capital surgtaa only be used to offset a deficit,
and only the realized capital surplus can be ueeithdrease the common stock or be
distributed as cash dividends. The aforementiorealized capital surplus includes
capital surplus arising from premium on issuanceayital stock and the fair value of
donated assets received. According to the Reguokti®overning the Offering and

Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, ccease common stock by transferring
paid in capital in excess of par value should n@eed 10% of the total common stock
outstanding.

The Company distributed out of capital reserve calsNT$ 401,900 thousands
(NT$ 0.6855 per share) and NT$ 1,759,511 thous@Nd@$ 3 per share) approved the
shareholders' meeting resolution on June 27, 20i® June 26, 2018. Relevant
information can be found on the Market ObservaRost System website

3. Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuaat resolution by a shareholders’
meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing r#hares or by distributing cash, and
only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 2B%apital stock may be distributed.
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4. Special reserve

When the parent company adopted the internatianah¢ial reporting standards
(IFRSs) approved by the FSC for the first time, paeent company had chosen to apply
IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of the IFRSs” exemptgmmetained earnings was increased
by NT$ 161,317 thousand due to the accumulatedersion adjustment (profit) under
the shareholders’ equity, which exceeding the neteiase of NT$ 102,349 thousand in
retained earnings on the conversion date for ts¢-time adoption of IFRSs approved
by the FSC. In accordance with Regulatory PermitNd 0012865 as issued by the FSC
on April 6, 2012, a special reserve is appropridteth retained earnings based on the
aforementioned requirement. Under such regulatiosnCompany is also required to set
aside an additional special reserve, as part ofligtabution of its annual earnings, equal
to the difference between the amount of the abogetibned special reserve and the net
debit balance of other components of the stockmsldsquity. The only distributable
special reserve is the portion that exceeds thelelgit balance of the other components
of the shareholders’ equity. The carrying amountspecial reserve both were $102,349
thousand as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

According to the Order referred to above, whiletribsiting the distributable
earnings, the parent company had additional speesérve appropriated from the
current gain or loss and unappropriated earninghefprior period for the difference
between the net amount debited to other sharehsldguity and the balance of the
special reserve appropriated in the preceding papag For the amount debited to other
shareholders’ equity attributable to prior periatwmulation, the special reserve was
appropriated from the unappropriated earnings ef ghor period and could not be
distributed. The amount debited to the sharehol@ensty reversed subsequently can be
distributed as earnings.

3. Earnings distribution and dividend policy

The Company's article of incorporation stipulatat tBompany's net earnings should first
be used to offset the prior years' deficits, if dpgfore paying any income taxes. Of the
remaining balance, 10% is to be appropriated aasl legerve, and then any remaining
profit together with any undistributed retainedrdéags shall be distributed according to
the distribution plan proposed by the Board of Dioes and submitted to the

stockholders’ meeting for approval.

After considering both the long term developmenthaf business and the goal of stable
growth of earnings per share, the distribution igfdnds to shareholders should not be
less than 50% of the distributable earnings, winctalculated using the net income of
the current year, minus, legal reserve and speesarve. Distribution of cash dividends
should not be less than 50% of the total dividends.

The Company 's shareholder meeting decided totatigeprior years' deficits on June
26, 2018, which did not differ from the proposechtemt of the board of directors..
Relevant information can be accessed from the M&@kservation Post System website.
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The distributions of dividends per share for tharge2018 approved by the stockholders
during their meetings on June 27, 2019 was asvistio

2018

Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders:
Cash (dividends per share was $2.3145) $ 1,356,963

The above-mentioned earnings distribution is caestswith the resolution approved by
the board of directors. The information is avaialon the Market Observation Post
System website.

The board of directors proposed the 2019 annuairegs distribution on March 19, 2020.
The above earrings distribution will be resolved shareholders’ meeting. After the

resolution of the relevant meeting of the Compdhg,information can be accessed from
the Market Observation Post System website.

. Treasury share

The treasury shares bought back by the Companpéeaal deregistered in 2018.

Unit: Thousand shares

2018
Reasons for Beginning Increase of  Decrease of Ending
buy back shareholdings the year the year shareholdings
Transferred to 5,555 - 5,555 -

employee

Note : The deregistration was done in 2019 thirartgur.

5. Other interests (net after tax)

Gains
(losses)from
equity
instruments Unrealized

Exchange measured at gains
differences fair value  (losses) on
¢ Olnt' through available
ransiation other for sale ,
of foreign  comprehensi financial Fﬁ,i’g;ﬂfg?“ﬁ;”
operations  ve income assets employees Other Total
January 1, 2019 $(1,586,241) (1,406,132) - (75,334)  (3,380) (3,071,087)
Fore_ign exchange (631,106) ) ) (631,106)
differences (net of tax)
Exchange differences on
subsidiaries accounted
for using equity
method (6,997) - - - 112 (6,885)
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Unrealized losses from
financial assets
measured at fair value
through other

comprehensive income  ~ (24,230) B ) B (24,230)
Unrealized losses from
financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
of associates accounti
for using equity
method - 158,135 - - - 158,135
Cost of hiares issued wit
restrictions on
employee rights ) B B 56,726 B 56,726
Disposition of equity
instruments measured
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income - (313,015) - - - (313,015)
Balance of December 31,
2019 $(2,224,344) (1,585,242) - (18,608) (3,268) (3,831,462)
Exchange U ’
H nrealize
dlffecr)inces Un:ﬁgiidoﬁam d gains
. financial ts (losses) on
anslaton 1N G anl
Of. orel_g:] valugtthher:)ugh TOI’ sa]e Remuneration
inancia comprehensive  fiN@NCial unearned by
statements  gain or loss assets employees Other Total

Balance of January 1,

2018 $(1,973,334) - (1,109,28. (236,020)
Effects of retrospective

application of new

(4,302) (3,322,937)

standards - (2,338,298) _ 1,109,2¢ - - (1,229,017)
January 1, 2018 after
adjusted (1,973,334) (2,338,298) - (236,020) (4,302) (4,551,954)

Foreign exchange
differences (net of tax) 391,255 - - -

Exchange differences on
subsidiaries accounted
for using equity
method (4,162) - - -

Unrealized losses from
financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income - (529,832)
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Unrealized losses from

financial assets

measured at fair value

through other

comprehensive income

of associates accounti

for using equity

method - (96,198) - - - (96,198)
Disposition of equity

instruments measured

fair value through other

comprehensive income - 1,558,196 - - - 1,558,196

Cost of shares issued w
restrictions on

employee rights - - - 160,686 - 160,686
Balance of December 31,
2018 $(1,586,241) (1,406,132) - (75,334) (3,380) (3,071,087)

(23) Share-based payment
1. New Restricted stock

On June 27, 2017, the Company resolved throughshiaeeholders’ meeting to issue
6,000 thousand new restricted employee sharesobbjeet is limited to manager-level
(including) above supervisors and full-time empleyavith special contributions who
have served for more than one year at the compang the granting day. The company
has filed a declaration with the Securities andufeg Commission of FSC and all the
shares were issued by the board of directors riésolown October 5, 2017. The fair
value of the grant was NT$ 67.2.

The employees who have been allocated the abovéemed new restricted
employee shares will be able to subscribe for treres allocated for NT$20 each. The
vested condition is that after receiving the nestrieted employee shares, they are still
in service according to the following schedule, aheéir performance reaches A
(including) above, then they can obtain the shaeentage of the vested condition
respectively:

(1) 1 year of service: 40%
(2) 2 year of service: 70%
(3) 3 year of service: 100%

After the employees subscribe for the new shates; may not sell, pledge, transfer,
donate, set or do other disposition of their shargs the vested conditions are fulfilled,;
new restricted employee shares are subject tagheto participate in the distribution of
dividends, and the dividends they receive are njest to the vested period; the
proposal, speech, voting rights and other relevanareholders’ equity of the
shareholders meeting of the Company before theedestnditions are the same as the
other ordinary shares of the Company; after theaisse, the new restricted employee
shares should be immediately delivered to the wustustody and must not be returned
to the trustee for any reason or manner until tbeted conditions are fulfilled. If the
employee is not eligible for the vested conditifterathe new share is subscribed, the
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shares will be bought back by the Company at thgeiprice.

Details of the restricted stock of the Companyaaréollows:
Unit: Thousand shares

2019 2018
Outstanding at 1 January (number) 3,408 5,965
Vested during the year (number) (1,646) (2,341)
Forfeited during the year (number) (66) (216)
Outstanding at 31 December (number) 1,696 3,408

The remuneration costs recognized by the Compa@19 and 2018 were NT$ 53,611
thousands and NT$ 151,199 thousands respectivety,recognized as the operating
costs and operating expenses. The balance of {h&diemployee remuneration of the
Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 were NT@0& thousands and NT$
75,334 thousands, accounted for in reductionsharagquity.

2. Cash delivery share-based payment

The Group issued a cash delivery share-based payorea period of four years.
The assigned employees are entitled to future gasiments when performing the
conditions of service. The condition of the plaguies that employees who are entitled
to the above share appreciation rights must beemice on each vested date at the
consolidated company (February 28, 2019, Febru8ry2020, February 28, 2021 and
February 28, 2022) On each vested day employestiited to a 25% share appreciation
right. In addition, the share appreciation righte determined by the stock price of
GlobalWafers on each vested day and individualgoerance.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the price of @\Mafers stock was NT$
382.5 and NT$280.5 respectively, and the numbenaf-acquired shares waso00
thousand. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, theotidated company has recognized
the remuneration cost amounted NT$92,739 thousamtl MT$ 70,125 thousand
respectively.

(24) Earnings per share

1. Basic earnings per share

2019 2018
Net income attributable to the shareholders o
Company $ 2,248,386 1,950,503
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (in thousands of shares 583.210 580.508
Basic earnings per share (dollars) $ 3.86 3.36
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2. Diluted earnings per share

Company

in thousands)

1. Details of revenues

Primary geographical
markets:

Taiwan

Northeast Asia
(Japan and Korea)

Asia—others
America

Europe

2019 2018
Net income attribtable to the shareholders of the
2,248,38 1,950,503
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (in thousands of shares 581 210 581,058
Impact of dilution of potential ordinary sharesgste
3,899 3,672
Weighted average number of outstanding common
stock (shares in thousands)(diluted) 587,109 584,730
Diluted earnings per share (dollars) $ 3.83% 3.34
(25) Revenue from contracts with customers
2019 2018
Semiconductor  Solar energy Semiconducto  Solar energy
Department Department Total r Department Department Total
$ 12,568,540 1,721,425 14,289,965 13,429,594 3,190,990 16,620,584
17,852,401 1,104,253 18,956,654 17,263,975 1,420,473 18,684,448
9,100,112 1,311,136 10,411,248 9,676,930 2,034,623 11,711,553
8,410,577 1,511,115 9,921,692 8,340,541 1,421,750 9,762,291
7,165,983 1,697,439 8,863,422 6,971,277 1,601,502 8,572,779
2,992,340 74,904 3,067,244 3,361,777 525,513 3,887,290

Other areas

Major product
categories:

Semiconductor
wafers

Solar cell
Solar module
Solar ingot

Semiconductor
ingot
Solar wafer

Other

$ 57,721,510 - 57,721,510 58,447,151 - 58,447,151
- 2,877,421 2,877,421 - 3,141,457 3,141,457

- 1,553,577 1,553,577 - 2,066,427 2,066,427

- 792,922 792,922 - 1,608,721 1,608,721
275,284 - 275,284 492,114 - 492,114

- 144,716 144,716 - 581,924 581,924
93,159 2,051,636 2,144,795 104,829 2,796,322 2,901,151

$ 58,089,953 7,420,272 _ 65,510,225 59,044,094 10,194.851__ 69,238,945
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2. Contract balance

2019.12.31 2018.12.31 2018.1.1
Notes and accoun
receivable(including related
parties) $ 8,502,200 $ 9,874,500 8,827,642
Contract liabilities $ 21,409,237 $ 20,374,971 8,591,453

received from customers for the contracts, in whelenue is recognized when products
are delivered to customers. The amount of revemgegnized for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, which was includetiercontract liability balance at the

beginning of the period, was NT$2,310,280 thousand NT$1,676,859 thousand,

respectively.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the vatice consideration received from
customers for the semiconductor and soar prodadts £ontracts, in which revenue is
recognized when products are delivered to custamers

(26) Remuneration to employees and directors

In accordance with the articles of associationhef Company if there is profit in the year,

the company shall accrue 3%- 15% of the profitrapleyee's remuneration. The board of
directors decides to distribute it by stock or ¢amid the object of distribution includes

employees meeting certain conditions; and the bobdirectors decides to accrue up to 3%
of the above profit as directors' remuneration. diséribution of remuneration of employees

and directors should be submitted and reportechéoshareholders’ meeting. In case the
parent company has cumulative losses, it shoukervesamount to make up losses before
distributing remuneration to the employees andctims in pursuant to the percentage
mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 201&dhmpany accrued and recognized its
employee remuneration amounting to $622,810 thalisamd $504,801 thousand and
directors' amounting to $49,200 thousand and $80,0fbusand, respectively. These
amounts were calculated by using the Company’'stgxaiet profit for the period before
deducting the amounts of the remuneration to engageyand directors, multiplied by the
distribution of ratio of the remuneration to empeg and directors based on the Company’s
articles of incorporation, and expensed under dipgr&osts or expenses. If there would be
any changes in accounting estimates the changdsbshaccounted for as profit or lost in
the following year. If, however, the shareholdeesedmine that the employee remuneration
is to be distributed through stock dividends, tha&wlation, based on the shares, shall be
calculated using the stock price on the day befioeeboard of directors. If there would be
any changes in accounting estimates the changdsbshaccounted for as profit or lost in
the following year

The amounts as stated in the consolidated finastéd¢ments are identical to those of the
actual distributions for 2019 and 2018.Relevanbrimfation can be accessed from the
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Market Observation Post System website.

(27) Other income

2019 2018
Interest income $ 757,732 482,902
Dividend income 9,477 34,994
$ 767,209 517,896
(28) Other gains and losses
2019 2018
Foreign exchange gains (losses) $ (235,553) (39,18
Impairment loss of investments accounted for using
equity method - (227,392)
Unrealized gains (losses) on financial assets
(liabilities) measured at fair value through praii
loss (286,287) 67,241
Realized gains (losses) on financial assets (lieds)
measured at fair value through profit or loss 378,105 79,466
Impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost (25,973) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 72,584 -
Other 233,500 191,113
$ 136,376 71,244

(29) Share of other comprehensive income of aatxiand joint ventures accounted for using
equity method
2019 2018

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations $ (6,997) (4,162)
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in

equity instruments measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income 276,597  (169,482)

$ 269,600 (173.644)

(30) Financial instruments
1. Credit Risk
(1) Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets repres@snaximum amount exposed to
credit risk.

— 76 —



Sino-American Silicon Products Inc. and subsidiarie

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Concentration of credit risk

The main customers of the Group are from the soidrsilicon wafer industries. The
Group generally sets credit limits to its customerscording to their credit
evaluations. Therefore, the credit risk of the Graaimainly influenced by the solar
and silicon wafer industry. As of December 31, 2@ 2018, 53% and 43%,
respectively, of the Group’s accounts receivabiel@ding related parties) were from
the top 10 customers. Although there is a potemdiaconcentration of credit risk,
the Group routinely assesses the collectabilitthefaccounts receivable and makes a
corresponding allowance for doubtful accounts.

(3) Receivables and debt securities

For credit risk exposure of notes and trade retddsa please refer to note 6(5).Other
financial assets at amortized cost includes otbegivables, investments in corporate
bonds. Impairment loss on financial assets measatregnortized cost, please refer
to note 6(4).

All of these financial assets are considered teeHaw risk, and thus, the impairment
provision recognized during the period was limited12 months expected losses.
Regarding how the financial instruments are comswldo have low credit risk,
please refer to note 4(7).

2. Liquidity Risk

The following table shows the contractual matusit@f financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments and excluding the itigfatetting agreements.

Carrying Contractual 6 months 2-5 yearsor
Amount cash flows within 6-12 months  1-2 years more

December 31, 2019
Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Short term borrowings $ 11,465,075 (11,490,667)(11,490,667)

Notes and accounts
payable (including
related parties) 4,179,695 (4,179,695) (4,179,695) - - -

Lease liabilities 931,397  (993,458) (92,567) (97,254)  (115,633)  (688,004)
Finance lease liabilities
Swap exchange contracts:

Inflow 68 (90,465) (90,465) - - -
Outflow - 90,075 90,075 -

Forward exchange contracts:
Inflow 209,712 (6,745,031) (6,745,031) - - -
Outflow - 6,535,319 6,535,319 - - -

$ 16,785.947(16.873,922)_(15,973,031) (97,254) (115,633) (688,004)

December 31, 2018
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Short term borrowings$ 9,334,809  (9,384,817) (9,083,378) (301,439) - -
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Notes and accounts
payable (including

related parties) 5,236,231  (5,236,231)(5,236,231) - -
Long term borrowings 2,040,200 (2,185,438) (21,056) (21,056) (1,178,479) (964,847)
Finance lease liabilities 28,392 (31,098) (4,551) (4,551) (9,102) (12,894)
Forward foreign exchange contracts:
Inflow (5,559,495) (5,559,495)
Outflow 81,679 5,638,200 5,638,200 - -
$ 16,721,311 (16,758,879)_(14,266,511) (327,046)__ (1,187,581) (977,741)

The Group does not expect the cash flows includetheé maturity analysis to occur
significantly earlier or at significantly differeatmounts.

3. Currency risk

(1) Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group’s significant exposure to foreign curserisk was as follows:

2019.12.31
Foreign
currency Exchange rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 488,134 29.980 14,634,257
JPY 259,534 0.2760 71,631
EUR 14,666 33.590 492,631
Non-monetary items
USsD 22,238 29.980 Note
JPY 2,632,949 0.2760 Note
EUR 3,508 33.590 Note
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD 42,249 29.980 1,266,625
JPY 2,413,109 0.2760 666,018
EUR 18,246 33.590 612,883
Non-monetary items
USD 4,650 29.980 Note
JPY 18,050,000 0.2760 Note
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2018.12.31
Foreign
currency Exchange rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items
UsD 353,183 30.715 10,848,016
JPY 541,424 0.2782 150,624
EUR 23,098 35.200 813,049
Non-monetary items
uUSsSD 24,747 30.715 Note
JPY 17,150,412 0.2782 Note
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
UsD 45,953 30.715 1,411,446
JPY 1,036,822 0.2782 288,444
EUR 6,732 35.200 236,966
Non-monetary items
USD 33,000 30.715 Note
EUR 18 35.200 Note

Note: The fair value of forward exchange contragdés measured at the reporting date.
For related information, please refer to note 6.

(2) Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arig®m the translation of the
foreign currency exchange gains and losses on argltash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, long and short-term loans,retel and accounts payables that
are denominated in foreign currency. A weakenitige(gthening) of 1% of the NTD
against the USD, JPY and EUR as of December 319 20l 2018, would have
increased (decreased) the net income before indamby $126,530 thousand and
$98,748 thousand, respectively. The analysis ieas foreign currency exchange
rate variances that the Group considered to beonma@ady possible at the reporting
date. The analysis assumes that all other variablesin constant and ignores any
impact of forecasted sales and purchases. Thesamalyas performed on the same
basis for comparative years.

(3) Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetarysitem

Since the Group has many kinds of functional cuyethe information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on monetary items is disclbgetbtal amount. For years 2019
and 2018, foreign exchange gain (loss) (includieglized and unrealized portions)
amounted to NT$(235,553) thousand and NT$(39, 183)gand, respectively.
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Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk manag@nand interest rate exposure of the
Group's financial liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on theosure to interest rates. Regarding
liabilities with variable interest rates, the arsdyis based on the assumption that the
amount of liabilities outstanding at the reportidgte was outstanding throughout the
year.

If the interest rate had increased or decreasel2Bf6, the Group’s net income would
have increased or decreased by NT$22,580 thouwmathdNT$2,219 thousand, for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respgctagsuming all other variable
factors remain constant. This is mainly due to@neup’s bank deposits and borrowings
with variable rates.

. Other price risk

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018sehsitivity analyses for the
changes in the securities price at the reportirig d@&re performed using the same basis
for the profit and loss as illustrated below:

2019 2018
Other Other
comprehensive comprehensive
Prices of securities at the income after income after
reporting date tax Net income tax Net income
Increasing 5% $ 16,609 93,833 60,247 8,853
Decreasing 5% (16,609) (93,833) (60,247) (8,853)

6. Fair value of financial instruments

(1) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial assets and liabilitedair value through profit or loss and

financial assets at fair value through other coimn@nsive income is measured on a
recurring basis. The carrying amount and fair valtighe Group’s financial assets

and liabilities, including the information on faualue hierarchy were as follows;

however, except as described in the following paaplgs, for financial instruments

not measured at fair value whose carrying amountasonably close to the fair

value, and lease liabilities, disclosure of failueainformation is not required:
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2019.12.31
Fair value
Carrying
Amount Level | Level Il Level lll Total
Financial assets measured at fair

value through gain or loss
Forward exchange contract  $ 6,920 - 6,920 - 6,920
Overseas securities held 1,876,6561,876,656 - - 1,876,656
Subtotal $ 1,.883576_ 1,876,656 6,920 - 1,883,576

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss—non
current $ 95,163 - - 95,163 95,163

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Non-public offer equity
instrument measured at fair

value - - 332,185 __ 332,185
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents ~ $ 34,901,425 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable
(including related parties) 8,507,214 - - - -
Other financial assets - current
and non-current 4,054,629 - - - -
Corporate bonds - current and
non_current 507,680 - 507,680 - 507,680
Subtotal $ 47,970,948 - 507,680 - 507,680
Financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Swap exchange contracts $ 68 - 68 - 68
Forward exchange contracts 216,632 - 216,632 - 216,632
Subtotal $ 216,700 - 216,700 - 216,700

Financial liabilities measured with
amortized costs
Short term borrowings $ 11,465,075 ) ) ) )

Notes and accounts payable
(including related parties) 4,179,695 - - - -

Lease liabilities-current and
non-current 931,397 - - - -

Subtotal $ 16,576,167 - - - -
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2018.12.31
Fair value
Carrying
Amount Level | Level Il Level Il Total
Financial assets measured at fair
value through gain or loss
Forward exchange contract $ 81,798 - 81,798 - 81,798
Stock listed on domestic market 177,053 177,053 - - 177,053
Privately offered fund 64,697 - - 64,697 64,697
Subtotal $ 323,548 177,053 81,798 64,697 323,548
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Stock listed on domestic market $ 717,420 717,420 - - 717,420
Non-public offer equity
instrument measured at fair
value 487,504 - - 487,504 487,504
$ 1,204,924 717,420 - 487,504 _ 1,204,924
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost
Corporate bonds $ 281,366 - 285,466 - 285,466
Cash and cash equivalents 36,829,131 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivable
(including related parties) 9,881,332 - - - -
Other financial assets - current
and non-current 1,095,777 - - - -
Subtotal $ 48,087,606 - 285,466 - 285,466

Financial liabilities measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive gain or loss $ 119 - 119 - 119

Financial liabilities measured with
amortized costs

Short term borrowings $ 9,334,809 - - - 9,334,809
Notes and accounts payable
(including related parties) 5,236,231 - - - 5,236,231

Long term borrowings (including
current portion of long term

borrowings payable) 2,040,200 - - - 2,040,200
Finance lease payable (current

and non-current) 27,868 - 27,868 - 27,868

Subtotal $ 16,639,108 - 27,868 - 16,639,108

(2) Valuation techniques for financial instrumentt measured at fair value

The Group’s valuation techniques and assumptioed t@ financial instruments not
measured at fair value are as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
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If the quoted prices in active markets are ava@latiie market price is established as
the fair value. However, if quoted prices in activearkets are not available, the
estimated valuation or prices used by competitersadopted.

(3) Valuation techniques for financial instrumemtsasured at fair value
A. Non derivative financial instruments

A financial instrument is regarded as being quoatedn active market if quoted

prices are readily and regularly available from excthange, dealer, broker,

industry group, pricing service, or regulatory aggerand those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactionsan arm’s length basis.

Whether transactions are taking place ‘regularyy’ai matter of judgment and

depends on the facts and circumstances of the tfarkide instrument.

Quoted market prices may not be indicative of @ie Yalue of an instrument if
the activity in the market is infrequent, the marlseenot well established, only
small volumes are traded, or bid ask spreads agewide. Determining whether
a market is active involves judgment.

If the financial instruments held by the consolehtompany belong to an active
market, the fair value is booked as follows by gatg and attribute:

For financial assets and financial liabilities bétlisted company's stocks, notes
of exchange and corporate bonds, which are suligecttandard terms and
conditions and are traded in the active market,féirevalue is determined by
reference to market quotations.

In addition to the above-mentioned financial instamts with active markets, the
fair value of the remaining financial instruments obtained by means of
evaluation technologies or reference to counteypgdotes. The fair value

obtained through the evaluation technology candseth on the current fair value
of other financial instruments with similar chaexcstics and characteristics, the
discounted cash flow method or other evaluatiorhrietogy, including the

calculation with the model and the market informatiavailable on the

consolidated balance sheet date (such as the me&engeld curve of Taiwan

Stock Exchange, Reuters commercial promissoryasteate average offer).

If the financial instruments held by the consolethtcompany are in the
non-active market, the fair value is booked afedl by category and attribute:

Equity instruments without public quotation: Esties of fair value using the
market comparable company method, the main assongptire based on the
earnings multiplier derived from the investee's metrth per share and the
EV/EBIT comparable listed companies' quotes. Thi#mase has adjusted the
depreciation impact of the lack of market liquiditithe equity securities.
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B. Derivative financial instruments

Measurement of the fair value of derivative insteims are based on the
valuation techniques generally accepted by marlatigpants, such as the
discounted cash flow or option pricing models. Tdievalue of forward currency
is usually determined based by the forward curren@hange rate.

(4) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

The Group’s financial instruments which were bekng Level 3 fair value were
financial assets measured at fair value througlkerotomprehensive income and
financial assets measured at fair value througHitpoo loss. The movement as
follows:
Financial assets
measured at
Financial assets fair value
measured at fair  through other
value through ~ comprehensive

profit or loss income

January 1, 2019 $ 64,697 487,504
Addition 31,195 1,636
Recognized in profit or loss (729) -
Recognized in other comprehensive income - (119,960)
Refund - (28,239)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - (8,756)
December 31, 2019 $ 95,163 332,185
January 1, 2018 $ - 838,181
Effects of retrospective application of new - (12,254)
accounting standards

Restatement balance at January 1, 2018 - 825,927
Addition/ refund - 33,977
Recognized in profit or loss (481) -
Recognized in other comprehensive income - (320,470)
Reclassification 65,178 (65,178)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 13,248
December 31, 2018 $ 64,697 487,504

(5) Quantified information on significant unobsdniainputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Group’s financial instruments that use LeveinButs to measure fair value
include “fair value through other comprehensiveoime — equity investments”.
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The favorable and unfavorable effects representcttamges in fair value, and fair
value is based on a variety of unobservable inpatsulated using a valuation
technique. The analysis above only reflects thecedfof changes in a single input,
and it does not include the interrelationships \atiother input.

Quantified information of significant unobservablputs was as follows:
Relations between
significant unobservable

Evaluation Significant unobservable input value and fair

ltem technology input value value
Financial assets at Comparable listed ¢ Equity value multiplier » The higher the
fair value through company method (Decemeber.31.2019 and multiplier, the higher
other comprehensive 2018 are 0.73%-18.08% the fair value
income equity and 0.13-2.14 respectively)s The higher discount on
investments without » Discount on lack of market lack of market
an active market liquidity (December.31 liquidity, the lower the

2019 and 2018 are fair value

22.45%-28% and
19.4%-50.57%
respectively)

(6) The fair value of the Group’s financial instrents that use Level 3 inputs to measure
fair value was based on the price of the third ypafhe Group did not disclose
quantified information and sensitivity analysis significant unobservable inputs
because the unobservable inputs used in fair vakesurement were not established

by the Group.

(7) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, there wereamsfers at fair value level

(31) Financial risk management

1. Overview

The Group has exposures to the following risks franfinancial instruments:

(@) Credit risk
(b) Liquidity risk
(c) Market risk

The following likewise discusses the Group’s ohbjexd, policies and processes for
measuring and managing the above-mentioned risis.nfore disclosures about the
quantitative effects of these risk exposures, glaaser to the respective notes in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

2. Structure of risk management

The board of directors has overall responsibilty the establishment and oversight of
the risk management framework. The board is resplen®r developing and monitoring
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company’s risk management policies. Internal auslitmssist the board of directors to
monitor and review the risk management control gxbernal procedures regularly and
report them to the board of directors.

The Group’s risk management policies are estaldigbadentify and analyze the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limatgl controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies aysiems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the G@gtivities. The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedunes,ta develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all empes understand their roles and
obligations.

The Group’s audit Committee oversees how managemenitors compliance with the
Group’s risk management policies and proceduresrevidws the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks fabgdhe Group. The Group audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by rimaé Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk manageroentrols and procedures, the results
of which are reported to the audit committee.

. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thed@p if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractabligations, and arises principally from
the Group’s receivables from customers and investsna debt securities.

(1) Accounts receivables and other receivables

The Group has established a credit policy underchwvleach new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness befohe tGroup’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. PurcHasis are established for each
customer and reviewed quarterly. Customers thhtdaneet the Group’s benchmark
creditworthiness may transact with the Group omyagrepayment basis.

(2) Investment

The exposure to credit risk for the bank depoBiked income investments, and other
financial instruments is measured and monitorethkyGroup’s finance department.
The Group only deals with banks, other externaligmr corporate organizations,
government agencies and financial institutions vgtod credit rating. The Group
does not expect any counterparty above fails ta iteebligations hence there is no
significant credit risk arising from these countatges.

(3) Guarantee

According to the Group’s policy, the Group can omsovide endorsements for
companies with business dealing, the companiesttirer indirectly owned more
than 50% shares with voting right by the Group,tlee companies directly or
indirectly owned more than 50% shares with votimghtr of the Group. As of
December 31, 2019 and 20178 the Group did not gecany endorsement
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guarantees except to its subsidiaries.
4. Liquidity Risk

There is no liquidity risk of being unable to rais@pital to settle contract obligations
since the Group has sufficient capital and worlaagital to fulfill contract obligations.

Loans and borrowings from the bank form an impdrsaurce of liquidity for the Group.
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group's whasslit line were amounted to
NT$28,830,716 thousand and NT$23,634,968 thousasgectively.

5. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market ggjcsuch as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices, which will affdet Group’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objectiventdirket risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptg@emeters, while optimizing the
return.

(1) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales;hases and borrowings that are
denominated in currencies other than the respedtinetional currencies of the
Group’s entities, primarily the New Taiwan DollaNTD), but also include the
Chinese Yen (CNY), US Dollar (USD), Japanese Y&Y}Jand Euro (EUR). These
transactions are denominated in NTD, USD, JPY duR.E

Interest is denominated in the currency used imadvangs. Generally, borrowings
are denominated in currencies that match the dasfs fgenerated by the underlying
operations of the Group, primarily NTD, but alsolude USD.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabildexsominated in foreign currencies,
the Group ensures that its net exposure is kephtacceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when ihesessary to address short term
imbalances.

(2) Interest rate risk

The Group holds variable rate assets and lialslitighich cause the exposure to
interest rate risk in cash flows.

(3) Equity instrument price

The Group is exposed to equity price risk due ® ithvestments in equity
securities. This is a strategic investment anatseld for trading.

Please refer to Note 6 (30) for the risk of change.
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(32) Capital Management

The board of directors’ policy is to maintain aosiy capital base in order to maintain
investor, creditor and market confidence and tdasnguture development of the business.
Capital consists of share capital, capital surphesained earnings and non controlling
interests of the Group. The board of directors nawsithe return on capital as well as the
level of dividends to ordinary stockholders.

The Group’s debt to equity ratios at the end ofrdporting periods were as follows:

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Total Liabilities $ 60,767,455 56,071,450
Less: Cash and cash equivalent (34,901,425) (36,829,131)
Net liabilities $ 25,866,030 19,242 319
Total Equity $ 48,616,041 47,913,865
Debt to equity ratio 53.20% 40.16%

Due to an increase in provision, the debt to eguaitip increased.
(33) Investing and financing activities not affecticurrent cash flow

A. For acquiring right-of-use assets by lease,qaeafer to note 6(12).

B. Reconciliations of liabilities arising from finaing activities were as follows:

Foreign
exchange
January 1, movement December
2019 Cash flows  and others 31, 2019
Short -term borrowings $ 9,334,809 2,163,041 (32,775) 11,465,075
Long-term borrowings 2,040,200 (2,040,200) - -
Lease liabilities 1,179,268 (201,027) (46,844) 931,397
Guarantee deposit received 342,861 (145,179) (4,187) 193,495
Total liabilities from financing $ 12,897,138 (223,365) (83,806) __ 12,589,967
activities
Foreign
exchange
January 1, movement December
2018 Cash flows  and others 31, 2018
Short -term borrowings $ 13,753,204 (4,464,007) 45,612 9,334,809
Long-term borrowings 5,646,872 (3,606,672) - 2,040,200
Guarantee deposit received 910,098 17,858 (585,095) 342,861
Total liabilities from financing $ _ 20,310,174_ (8,052,821) (539,483) ___ 11,717,870
activities
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7. Related party transactions
(1) Names and relationships of related parties

The parties involved in the transaction of the clidated company during the period of the
consolidated financial report are as follows:

Relationships between the

Names of related parties consolidated company
Solartech Energy Corp. Main management of SAS.€Npt
URE Main management of SAS. (Note 1)

Sunshine PV. Corporation (hereinafter referredd¢sociate of URE
as Sunshine PV.)

Song Long Electronics Corporation (hereinaft&AS’s management is the director of the

referred to Song Long Eletronics) company

Actron Technology Corporation (hereinafter SAS’s management is the director of the
referred to as Actron Technology) company/ Associate of the Group

Accu Solar Corporation Associate of the Group

TSCS Associate of the Group

Crystalwise Technology Inc. Associate of the Group

Cathy Sunrise Corporation Associate of the Group

Cathy Sunrise One Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the @rassociate

Cathy Sunrise Two Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the Graspociate

Cathy Sunrise Electric Power One Co., Ltd. Subsydih the Group associate

Cathy Sunrise Electric Power Two Co., Ltd. Subsidat the Group associate

Sunrise PV One Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the Grougmemte

Sunrise PV Five Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the Groapaziate(Note 2)

Note 1: Solartech Energy was merged and cancell@tiober 2018. The existing company
was renamed URE.
Note 2: Sunrise PV Five Co., Ltd was sold to C&lyrise Corporation in 2019.

(2) Significant transactions with related parties
1. Sales

The amount of significant sales and engineeringraohrevenue by the Group related
parties were as follows:

2019 2018
Associate $ 918,154 956,605
Other related parties 120,007 439,403

$ 1,038,161 1,396,008

The sales price for sales and engineering to théeeparties was determined by market
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value and adjusted according to the sales areaalasd volume.

The credit terms for third parties were 0 to 21§sdm 2019 and 2018, while those for
related parties were 30 days after month-end, pedri advanced to 180 days after
month-end and 30 days after month-end to 180 diégrsshipment in 2019 and 2018.

The engineering sales of the Group and associate refanded in 2018 due to the
withdrawal of the project. The amount of the projesceived and returned was NT$

50,227 thousands. As of December 31, 2018, it veaxkdd under the item of related
parties.

2. Purchase and outsourced processing

The amounts of purchases and process outsourcirtheb@roup from related parties
were as follows:

2019 2018
Associate $ 79 12,949
Other related parties 11,248 25,324
11,327 38,273

The prices of purchases and process outsourcing determined by market rates.

The payment terms to third parties were 0 to 156 @dter month end both in 2019 and

2018, while those to related parties were prepayrimeflO days after month end and 15
to 60 days after month end in 2019 and 2018.

For the purchase of raw materials, the Companyepayment to other related parties
was NT$ 1,179 thousands, which is accounted foeutite prepaid materials.

. Receivables from related parties

The receivables from related parties were as falow

Account Categories 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
Receivables from related partAessociate $ 61,303 42,133
Receivables from related part@ther related parties 6,648 64,950

$ 67,951 107,083

In order to maintain a stable supply of raw matsniaquired for production, the related
parties successively signed short-term and long-t&upply contracts with the Group,

and the details of the receipts in advance to ¢feted parties (recognized as contract
liabilities - current / non-current) were as follew

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
$ 883,220 883.697

Other related party-URE
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4. Payables to related parties

The payables to related parties were as follows:
Account Categories 2019.12.31 2018.12.31

319

Receivable from related partigsssociate $ 7,052

5. Transactions of property, plant and equipment

Disposals of property, plant and equipment to eelggarties are summarized as follows:

2019 2018
Receivablefrom Receivablefrom
Disposal price related parties Disposal price related parties
Associate $ 35616 4.859 = -

For the year end December 31, 2019 and 2018, thefrgan disposal property,
plant and equipment were NT$1,006 thousand and NA@@sand respectively.

Purchase amounts of property, plant and equipmerh frelated parties were
summarized as follows:

2019 2018
Payable to Payable to
Amount related parties Amount related parties
Associate $ - - 5,092 -

6. Corporate bonds

In October 2016 and January 2019, the Group puech#ése five-year private issued
corporate bonds and the one-year private issue@orate bonds of Crystalwise
Technology, by NT$ 280,000 thousand and NT$ 250 @Wsand respectively. The
interest rate and the coupon rate were both 2%.

Interest income for the year 2019 and 2018 were NI$53 thousands and NT$ 5,600
thousands respectively. As of December 31, 2012848, the accumulated investment
cost and interest receivable were NT$ 507,680 tmdisand NT$ 281,366 thousand
respectively, recognized as financial assets medsat amortized cost - current and
non-current.

7. Payment on behalf of others

The receivables from related parties and payahlleselated parties generated from
material purchases, insurance and utilities paysnantt manpower support of related
parties as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 werdlas/fo
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2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Associate $ 155 6,832
Associate (956) (796)
$ (801) 6,036

8. Others

The Group signed the plant lease contract withréeted parties. The details of rental
expenses and payables to the related parties wdodl@vs:

2019 2018
Associate $ = 2,142

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the payable efattove transactions had been
fully paid.

(2) The Group signed the plant lease contract With related parties. The details of
rental income and receivables to the related saviere as follows:

2019 2018
Associate $ 310 225

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the receivaldm fthe above transactions had
been fully received.

(3) Key management

Key management personnel compensation comprised of:

2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits $ 380,118 314,161
Post-employment benefits 1,460 1,590
Share-based payments 14,844 73,612
$ 396,422 389,363

The Group provided two cars costing $3,000 thousamd four cars costing $4,444
thousand, for key management use in 2019 and 2848ectively.
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8. Pledged Assets
The carrying values of pledged assets were asisllo

Pledge or Mortgage

Assets underlying subject 2018.12.31 2017.12.31
Property, plant and equipment Borrowings payable $ 3,155,429 3,475,408
Time deposits (recognized in other Guarantees of
financial assets - current) acceptances bill 39,977 22,393
Refundable deposits (recognized inGuarantee for the lease
other financial assets contract with the
non-current) Hsinchu Science
Industral Park Bureau 48,571 40,838
Time deposits (recognized in other Guarantee for gas
financial assets non-current) consumption from CP
Corporation 6,700 6,700
Time deposits (recognized in other Government grant
financial assets non-current)) 2,353 13,597
Time deposits (recognized in other Guarantee payment for
financial assets non-current)) import VAT 5,000 5,000
Time deposits (recognized in other Court guarantee
financial assets non-current)) 10,748 10,748
Time deposits (recognized in other Tax-Refunded Restricted
financial assets non-current) Deposits for Returning
Overseas Funds to
Taiwan 2,998,120 -

Refundable deposits (recognized irDeposits of material
other financial assets-non-current))purchase

Refundable deposits (recognized inCourt litigation
other financial assets-non-current)) 22,020 22,440

$ 6288918 3,764,249

- 167,125

9. Significant commitments and contingencies

Except as stated in Note 6 (21), other significaomtingencies liabilities and unrecognized
contractual commitments were as follows:

(1) Significant unrecognized contractual commitnsent

1. The purchase amounts for future delivery frompéers under the existing agreements and
the negotiated agreement were as follows:
(Expressed in thousands of foreign currency)

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
usbD 942,387 1,236,606
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EUR $ 3,779 12,157
JPY $ - 2,145,137

Silicon supplier Hemlock Semiconductor Pte. Ltder@inafter referred to as Hemlock)
sent a notice requesting that Sino-American Siliddroducts Inc.'s confiscated

prepayment, payment for goods not received andntieest related to the late payment
in accordance with to the long-term purchase conhtre accumulated to December 31
2018 was US$ 615,982 thousands. The Company andoklermrenegotiated in June

2019 to amend the important terms of the long-t@mocurement contract, pending
agreement between the parties.

. In response to the long-term purchase contedetred above, the Company has silicon
wafer long-term sales contracts signed with theéotaers since the year 2005. These
companies agree to pay the non-refundable fundhd@oCompany. The two parties
agreed to have silicon wafers sold in accordantle the agreed quantity and price from
January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2019. If the dslilas not been made in compliance
with the contract signed, a sales discount or aauatequivalent to 1.5-4 times of the
advance sales receipts from customers as remwresdtould be granted. If the delay of
shipment has not been resolved for more than thaghs, the outstanding pre-payment
should be refunded. In addition, in response toptiee decline arising from the falling
demand, solar energy battery customers and the @oynpill negotiate the selling price
and adjusting the average selling price in accardavith market conditions.

The amount of delivery according to the existingitcacts and current market
conditions is as follows:

(Expressed in thousands of foreign currency)

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

USD $ 29,852 91,640
EUR $ 25,695 68,815
NTD $ 54,845 54,845

. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the significamstanding commitments for
construction and purchase of property, plant andpeagent amounted to NT$ 6,669,493
thousand and NT$9,738,372 thousand, respectively.

. On December 31, 2019 and 2018, the total ammiumtomissory notes deposited by the
Group at the bank for acquiring bank financing wefe$ 12,869,060 thousand and NT$
11,549,325 thousand respectively.

. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, a guaranttes fer the Customs Administration
and Research and Development which was the Grogpested a bank to issue
amounted NT$ 23,230 thousand and NT$ 50,400 thoussmpectively.

. On December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’sandstg standby letters of credit were
as follows:
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(Expressed in thousands of foreign currency)
2019.12.31 2018.12.31

UsD $ 10.269 3,191
DKK $ - 3,750

7. The Group had a long term sales contract withesoustomers and received the advance
payment. The customer is required to order miningquantity according to the contract.
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, a guarantee fettehe customer which was the
Group requested a bank to issue amounted NT$11itf8isand and NT$117,233
thousand, respectively.

8. The Group has made an application of the Managgnutilization, and Taxation of
Repatriated Offshore Funds Act to the tax authesiton November 28, 2019 and
February 21, 2020. The application was approvedtaadund was repatriated. Up to
5% of the funds could be withdrawn and freely méti. The remaining 95% can only be
withdrawn for the investments approved by the Mmgi®f Economic Affairs, R.O.C.
upon the elapse of five full years after the ddteepositing the fund into a segregated
foreign exchange deposit account The Group has @adgplication to utilize the fund
for capital investment. The fund is planned toizgilfor factory extension, purchase of
factory's facilities and other related capital exgliture.

(2) Contingent liabilities

Hemlock filed summons and complaints against then@any and were delivered to the
Company on May 12, 2015. Both parties reached aeeatent in May 2016 then signed
STIPULATION OF DISCONTINUANCE and SETTLEMENT AGREEEBNT, where the
Company needs to purchase certain amount of pialysilfrom Hemlock and its related
companies based on SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT. Also, pesties signed an additional
agreement of Accommodation Letter to amend SETTLEWMIEAGREEMENT and extend
the date of litigation termination under STIPULATIOOF DISCONTINUANCE against
the Company until April 30, 2019, which Hemlock egd in December 2019 to further
extend the extension to December 31, 2019. In 2048, both parties agreed to amend the
important terms such as price and quantity of thgiral contract. The Company, in
accordance with the terms of the proposed revisauract, recognized provision for
loss-making contract liabilities. As of December, 2019, the above-mentioned provision
for loss-making contract liabilities amounted tq(8D,986 thousand.

10. Losses due to major disaster: None.

11. Subsequent Events

(1) In order to streamline the corporate structitrgyas resolved by the Board of Directors on
December 12, 2019 to merge the 100% held subsjdtamyrise PV World Co. After the merger,
the Company was the survival company while SunkB& World Co. was the eliminated

company. The consolidated base date for this mevgsrJanuary 31, 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Globalwafer's board of directors approved ormddeber 27, 2019 a plan of reorganization so
that Globalwafer would merge with Taisil, a 99.9@¥%uity held subsidiary. Globalwafer would
be the existing company and Taisil was dissolvéer aerging, on February 1, 2020.

(3) By resolution of the Board of Directors on Dexxer 12, 2019, in order to meet the operating
needs, the Group intended to purchase plant arigragat from Crystalwise Technology Inc. for
$860,000 thousand. The deposit of $250,000 thousasdpaid at the time of signing the sale
contract in January 2020, and the remaining pridebs& paid after completing the ownership
transfer registration.

12. Others
A summary of the employee benefits, depreciatiowl, @amortization expenses, by function is as
follows:
By Function 2019 2018
Cost of | Operating Cost of | Operating

By Item goods sold | expenses Total goods sold | expenses Total
Employee benefits

Salary 7,483,0892,654,51210,137,601 7,693,736 2,404,588.0,098,324

Labor and health 1,275,343 291,481 1,566,824 1,215,231 272,420 1,487,651
insurance

Pension 419,537 91,579 511,116 393,155 105,465 498,62(C

Others 626,980 133,916 760,896 620,301 141,123 761,424
Depreciation 4,827,331 203,095 5,030,426 5,396,123 232,110 5,628,233
Amortization 358,628 6,202 364,830 361,354 3,425 364,779

13. Other disclosures
(1) Information on significant transactions

The following is the information on significant trgactions required by the “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports égufities Issuers” for the Group:

1. Loans to other parties: Please refer to Table 1.
2. Guarantees and endorsements for other partessdrefer to Table 2.

3. Securities held as of December 31, 2019 (exatuoivestment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): Please refer to Table 3.

4. Individual securities acquired or disposed ofhwaccumulated amounts exceeding the
lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stoéKease refer to Table 4.

5. Acquisition of individual real estate with ama@xceeding the lower of NT$300 million
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or 20% of the capital stock: Please refer to Table

6. Disposal of individual real estate with amouxteeding the lower of NT$300 million or
20% of the capital stock: None

7. Related-party transactions for purchases ares s@ith amounts exceeding the lower of
NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock: Pleaster to Table 6.

8. Receivables from related parties with amounteeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of
the capital stock: Please refer to Table 7.

9. Trading in derivative instruments: Please redarotes 6(2).

10. Business relationships and significant intengany transactions: Please refer to Table 8.
(2) Information on investees: Please refer to T&ble

(3) Information on investment in Mainland China:

1. The names of investees in Mainland China, thm ftbasinesses and products and other
information: Please refer to Table 10(1).

2. Limitation on investment in Mainland China: Feaefer to Table 10(2).
3. Significant transactions:
The significant inter company transactions with ghsidiary in Mainland China,

which were eliminated in the preparation of cordatied financial statements, are
disclosed in the “Information on significant trangans”

14. Segment information
(1) Segment information

Reconciliation for segment Revenue (loss):

2019
Reconciliatio
Semiconductor Solar energy n and
Department Department  elimination Total
Revenues
Revenue from external customerst 58,089,953 7,420,272 - 65,510,225
Intersegment revenues 4,378 877,825 (882,203) -
$ 58,094,331 __(882,203)
Total revenue = M7 M5
Interest expenses $ 71,714 78,693 - 150,407
Depreciation and amortization $ 4.734.770 660.486 = —2.395.256
Reportable segment profit or loss $ 13,635,656_(4,395,881) - 9,239,775
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Share of profit (loss) of associates and (344,430)
joint ventures accounted for using eqt
method
$ 8,895,345
$ 96.013.82 _(247,243) 134,
Reportable segment Assets $ 06.013.824 10.368.3/8 106,134,959
Investments accounted for using equity 3,248,537
method
$ 109,383.4¢
Reportable segment liabilities $ 51,512,503 9,502,195_ (247,243) 60,767,455
2018
Adjustment
Semiconductor Solar energy and
Department Department elimination Total
Revenues
Revenue from external customerss 59,044,094 10,194,851 - 69,238,945
Intersegment revenues 19,416 677,097 _ (696,513) -

$ 59,063,51¢
Total revenue $ 50,063,510_10,871,948__ (696,513) _ 69,238,945

Interest expenses $ 108,013 103,990 - 212,003
i — $ 481283 - 5.983.012
Depreciation and amortization $ 4812838 1170174 e
Reportable segment profit or loss $ 13,616,234 (4,744,345) - 8,871,889
Share of profit (loss) of associates and (236,409)
joint ventures accounted for using eqt
method
$ 8,635,480
$ 89,664,721 12,455,852 943,
Reportable segment Assets $ 89664.721 12455852 (177.154) 101,943,419
Investments accounted for using equity 2,041,896
method
$ 103,985,315
Reportable segment liabilities $ 46494941 9,753,663__ (177,154) 56,071,450

Information by product:

The Group's revenue from external customers andeflegant customer contract revenue,
please refer to note 6(25).
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(3) Geographical information:

Segment revenue is presented by the geographicatida of customers and non-current
assets are presented by the geographical locdtitwe assets as follows:

A. The Group's revenue from external customers #&l relevant customer contract
revenue, please refer to note 6(25).

1. Non current assets:

Area 2019.12.31 2018.12.31

Korea $ 12,564,394 8,398,373
Taiwan 9,403,083 10,331,375
United States 8,621,899 6,548,067
Japan 6,989,861 6,333,308
Italy 3,382,102 3,557,669
Philippines 2,124,841 2,307,955
Others 1,947,597 3,646,316

$ 45,033,777 41,123.063

(4) Major customers information
Sales to individual customers representing grebager 10% of net sales of the Group :

2019 2018
Customer C group $ 10,253,312 9,494,244
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Loans to other parties
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Attachment 1 Unit: NT$ Thousand
Highest balance Actual Range of Purfpij?]s(fs o Transa(t:tfion Reasons Collateral Individual | Maximum
No| Name of Name of | Account |Related Ogtfr:';";“;g:‘t?etso Ending al::c?gr?t interest rates| financing ag]lj)sﬂ:es(;r for Loss funding loan|limit of fund
' lender borrower name party during the balance during the during the for the between short term |allowance Item |Value| limits (Note | financing
period 9 period borrower - | financing 2) (Note 3)
period (Note 1) | two parties
0 |Sino- Sulu Loan Yes 948,00( 899,40( 298,901 2.00% 2 - Working - - 10,668,096 10,668,09
American receivable + (USD30,000)(USD30,000) (USD9,970) capital
Silicon related
Products Inc party
0 |Sino- Sunrise PV |[Loan Yes 500,00( 500,00( - 2.50% 2 - Working - - 10,668,096 10,668,09
American  |World Co. |receivable + capital
Silicon related
Products Inc party
0 |Sino- Sunrise PV |Loan Yes 300,00( - - 2.50% 2 - Working - - 10,668,096 10,668,09
American  |Five receivable + capital
Silicon related
Products Inc party
0 |Sino- Sunrise PV |[Loan Yes 200,00( - - 2.50% 2 - Working - - 10,668,096 10,668,09
American  |Electric receivable + capital
Silicon related
Products Inc party
0 |Sino- Sunrise PV |Loan Yes 300,00( 300,00¢ 52,000 2.50% 2 - Working - - 10,668,096 10,668,09
American  |Three Energyreceivable + capital
Silicon related
Products Inc party
0 |Sino- Aleo Solar Loan Yes 283,04( - - 2.00% 2 - Working - - 10,668,096 10,668,09
American receivable + (EURS8,000) capital
Silicon related
Products Inc party
1 |SSTI Sulu Loan Yes 419,269 317,784 317,784 2.00% 2 - Working - - 1,943,776 1,943,77
receivable + (USD13,268)(USD10,600)(USD10,600 capital
related
party
1 |SSTI AMLED Loan Yes 339,709 333,917 333,917 2.00% 2 - Working - - 1,943,776 1,943,77
receivable + (UsSD11,138)(USD11,138)(USD11,138 capital
related
party
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Highest balance Actual Range of Pur%%sdes 0 Transactflon Reasons Collateral Individual | Maximum
N Name of Name of | Account [Related ©°f financingto | Fping USage i erest rates financing amount for for Loss funding loan|limit of fund
o. other parties amount . business . . .
lender borrower name party during the balance . during the for the short term |allowance Item |Value| limits (Note | financing
eriod during the eriod borrower | between \“g o o 2) (Note 3)
P period P (Note 1) | two parties 9
2 |SAS Sunrise|Sulu Loan Yes 191,084 - - 4.00% 2 - Working - - 922,234 922,234
Inc. receivable + (USD6,200) capital
related
party
3 |Aleo Solar | Aleo SunrisgLoan Yes 282,56( - - 2.00% 2 - Working - - 385,238 385,234
receivable + (EURS8,000) capital
related
party
4 |Aleo Solar | Aleo Sunris¢Loan Yes 219,93¢ - - 2.00%~ 4.00% 2 - Working - - 1,098,202 1,098,202
receivable + (USD6,960) capital
related
party
5 |Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV |Loan Yes 30,00( - - 2.00% 2 - Working - - 110,532 110,532
World Co. |Four receivable + capital
related
party
6 (GWJ GlobalWaferd.oan Yes 4,420,500 4,140,000 4,140,000 0.47909%~ 1 5,998,428 |Business - - 5,998,428 15,279,926
receivable + 0.53909% transactions
related
party
6 (GWJ MEMC Japajioan Yes 294,70( 276,000 - 0.56909% 2 - Working - - 15,279,926 15,279,926
receivable + capital
related
party
7 IMEMC SpA |GWS Loan Yes 2,759,640 2,620,020 2,047,302 3.559% 2 - Working - - 11,849,31F 11,849,31}
receivable + capital
related
party
8 |Taisil GlobalWaferg.oan Yes 6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 1.50% 2 - Business - - 7,091,890 7,091,890
receivable + transactionis
related
party
9 |GTI MEMC LLC |Loan Yes 632,00( 599,60( - 3.51% 2 - Working - - 9,486,787 9,486,787
receivable + capital
related
party
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Highest balance Actual Range of Pur%%s;s 0 Transactflon Reasons Collateral Individual | Maximum
N Name of Name of | Account [Related ©°f financingto | Fping USage i erest rates financing amount for for Loss funding loan|limit of fund
o. other parties amount . business . . .
lender borrower name party during the balance . during the for the short term |allowance Item |Value| limits (Note | financing
eriod during the eriod borrower | between % 2) (Note 3)
P period P (Note 1) | two parties 9
10|GWS GWBV Loan Yes 3,050,000 2,998,000 2,998,00 2.50% 2 - Working - - 25,151,706 25,151,706
receivable + capital
related
party
10|GWS GlobalWaferd.oan Yes 10,792,800 10,792,800 - 2.50% 2 - Working - - 6,434,620 6,434,620
receivable + capital
related
party
10|GWS GWI Loan Yes 3,258,826 3,258,826 3,258,826 2.50% 2 - Working - - 3,492,437 3,492,437
receivable + capital
related
party

Note 1: The entry method for the loaning of furglas follows:
(1) For business transactions, please fill in 1.
(2) Necessary for short-term financing, pleasarfil2.

Note 2: (1) For the Company's loan of funds to ¢hioaving business transactions, the individual iedimited to the trade amount between the twdigsiin the most recent year; for the
loan of funds to companies necessary for short-ferancing, the individual loan is limited to 40% the net worth of the company that lends loan;léan of funds among
foreign companies that the Company directly andréady holds 100% of the voting shares, the indiil loan is limited to 40% of the net worth of t@mpany that lends
loan.

(2)For GlobalWafers and its subsidiaries’ loanwids to those having business transactions, theidodl loan is limited to the trade amount betwées two parties in the most
recent year; for the loan of funds to companiesssary for short-term financing, the individualrida limited to 40% of the net worth of GlobalWafgthe fund-lendings
between the foreign companies whose voting shaseed@% owned, directly or indirectly, by the Compaor from the foreign companies whose voting share 100%
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company te tBompany are not subject to the previous provisfamet worth and not subject to the one-year limhithe term of funds in
Article 4, Paragraph 1, but should still specifytaminternal operating procedures for fund-lendingt and period.

Note 3: (1) For the Company's loan of funds to ¢hbaving business transactions, the total loaimigeld to 40% of the company that lends loan; foe toan of funds to companies
necessary for short-term financing, the total Ighimited to 40% of the net worth of the compahwgttlends loan; the fund-lendings between the goreompanies whose
voting shares are 100% owned, directly or indisedtly the Company, or from the foreign companieosenvoting shares are 100% owned, directly or éuntly, by the
Company to the Company are not subject to the pusvprovision of net worth and not subject to the-gear limit of the term of funds in Article 4,iagraph 1, but should
still specify in its internal operating procedufesfund-lending limit and period.

(2) For GlobalWafers and its subsidiaries' loafuofds to those having business transactions, takléan is limited to 40% of the company that Iehaln; for the loan of funds to
companies necessary for short-term financing, ated toan is limited to 40% of the net worth of thempany that lends loan; for loan of funds amamgign companies that
GlobalWafers directly and indirectly holds 100%iloé voting shares, or between the foreign compamedsGlobalWafers, the total loan is limited tards of the net worth of
GlobalWafers.

(3) For loan of funds of Aleo Solar, the total ldandimited to 100% of the net worth of the compahat lends loan.

(4) For loan of funds of Sulu and Sunrise PV Wdddhose having business transactions, the tosal is limited to 40% of the company that lends jdanthe loan of funds to
companies necessary for short-term financing, dked toan is limited to 40% of the net worth of thempany that lends loan; for loan of funds amamgifin companies that
the company that lends loan directly and indirebtiids 100% of the voting shares, the total lodimiged to 40% of the net worth of the companyttleads loan.

(5) For loan of funds of SSTI SAS Sunrise Inc. and SAS Sunrise Pte Ltd. to thasing business transactions, the total loanvigedd to 2 times of the company that lends loan;
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for the loan of funds to companies necessary fortdlerm financing, the total loan is limited tdithes of the net worth of the company that len@sjdor loan of funds among
foreign companies that the company that lends theactly and indirectly holds 100% of the votingasés, the total loan is limited to 40% of the nettiv of the company that
lends loan.

Note 4. Transactions with standalone parties adiored above were eliminated when preparing thedst@ne reports.
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Attachment 2

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Guarantees and endorsements for other parties
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Unit: NT$ Thousand

Counter party of

Ratio of

guarantee and Highest accumulated Parent
endorsement Limitation on balance for Balance of Property amounts of . company Subsidiary |Endorsements
guarantees Maximum | endorsements|endorsements| guarantees to
amount of guarantees |Actual usagel pledged for guarantees - -
N and amount for | guarantees to| guarantees | third parties
ame of guarantees and amount guarantees and - - . -
No. guarantor Relationshi and endorsements endorsements during the and endorsements  dvarantees third parties to third parties| on behalf of
Name | P.Withthe fengorsements during as of reporting|  period | endorsements{to net worth of and on behalf of | on behalf of | companies in
Company | o 4 specific the period date (Amount) the latest endorsements subsidiary parent Mainland
(Note 2) . (Notes 3, 8 an ) ) (Notes 3,8and company China
enterprise 9) financial 9)
statements
0 |Sino- SAS 2 26,670,241 252,80( - - - - 26,670,241 Y N N
American |Sunrise Inc (USD8,000
Silicon (note4
Products Inc,
0 [Sino- Sulu 2 1,545,758  1,453,60 1,379,080 1,379,08 - 5.17% 1,545,75 Y N N
American (note7) (USD46,000) (USD46,000)(USD46,000 (note7 (noteb)
Silicon (note6 (note6
Products Inc|
0 |Sino- Sunrise PV 2 26,670,241 200,00¢ 200,00¢ 4,230 - 0.75% 26,670,241 Y N N
American |World Co.
Silicon
Products Inc,
0 [Sino- Sunrise PV 2 26,670,241 500,00( 500,00( - - 1.87% 26,670,241 Y N N
American  |World and
Silicon its 100%
Products Inclowned
subsidiarieg
0 |Sino- Sunrise PV 2 26,670,241 100,00(¢ - - - - 26,670,241 Y N N
American |World Co
Silicon
Products Inc,
1 |GlobalWafer|Topsil A/S 2 45,067,016 117,95( 112,25( 33,675 - 0.25% 135,201,045 N N N
S
1 |GlobalWafer|GWS 2 45,067,015 1,896,00 1,798,800 384,827 - 3.99% 135,201,045 N N N
S
2 |GTI MEMC 2 47,433,935 474,00( 449,70( 97,831 - 4.74% 47,433,935 N N N
LLC
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Counter party of : Ratio of
guarantee and Flighest accumulated Parent -
Lo balance for company Subsidiary |Endorsements
endorsement Limitation on Balance of Property amounts of .
guarantees Maximum | endorsements|endorsements| guarantees to
amount of and guarantees |Actual usagel pledged for guarantees amount for Larantees to| quarantees | third parties
No Name of ; | guarantees endorsements| and amount guarantees and guarantees Et]hird parties toq[hird parties| on bghalf of
"| guarantor Relationshi and A endorsements during the and endorsements o
pwith the | anqorsements during as of reporting|  period endorsements{to net worth of and on behalf of | on behalf of | companies in
Name | company for a specific | . (e period date (Amount) the latest | €ndorsements _subsidiary parent Mainland
(Note 2) entergrise (Notes 3, 8 an financial (Notes 3,8and company China
9) 9)
statements
3 [Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV 2 1,105,320 170 170 170 - 0.06% 1,105,32 N N N
World Co. |Four
3 [Sunrise PV [Sunrise PV 2 1,105,320 421 421 421 - 0.15% 1,105,32 N N N
World Co. |[Three

Note 1: The method of filling the nature of endonseit guarantee is as follows:
(1) The issuer fills in 0.
(2) The investee company is numbered sequentiglthd company starting from the Arabic number 1.

Note 2:

(1) A company with business transactions.
(2) Companies that the Company directly and indiydwlds more than 50% of the voting shares.

(3) Companies that directly and indirectly holdsrenthan 50% of the voting shares of the Company.

There are the following seven types ofti@hship between the endorsement guarantor anentiersed object:

(4) Among companies that the Company directly andireéctly holds more than 90% of the voting shares.
(5) Companies in the same industry or joint cortdtms that are mutually guaranteed under contractgairements based on the needs of contractiojggir
(6) A company that is endorsed by all the contiitushareholders in accordance with their sharéhglditio due to the joint investment relationship.

(7) The joint performance guarantee of the pre-salese sales contract among companies in the satuastiy in accordance with Consumer protection law.

Note 3:

(1)The amount of endorsements/guarantersded by the endorsement guarantor company fangesenterprise is limited to 10% of the net woofithe company providing the

endorsements/guarantees, but for the subsidianpaoy limited to one time of the net worth of thempany providing the endorsements/guarantees. dtaé amount of
accumulated endorsements/guarantees shall notcetoe@et worth of the Company. The total amourthefCompany's endorsements/guarantees and treasfogle enterprise
shall not exceed five times the net worth of thenpany providing endorsements/guarantees. The afdreet worth is based on the financial statemestently audited or
reviewed by an accountant. For endorsements/geasutiue to business transactions, except subjét forovisions of the preceding item, the endoesgnguarantee amount
should be equal to the higher of the purchaseles semount.
(2) The Company’s performance bond for qagtigd after customs release is NT$ 10,000 thousands

Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:

This amount is USD 8,000 thousands ind@idwota for SAS Sunrise Inc..
The Company controls the financial and afeg strategies of Sulu through effective agregmeiith other investors of Sulu, so Sulu is consdeas a subsidiary.
Sulu shares with the company a quota of W8D00 thousands and Sulu's individual quota iB 36,000 thousands. The Company resolved on Octibhe2016 by the board of

directors to repay part of the loan, and reducestidbrsements/guarantees quota to USD 46,000 tmsisend repay the bank loan on October 19, 2016 attual disbursement
amount was reduced to USD 46,000 thousands.

Note 7:
Note 8:

The endorsements/guarantees quota foriSoalculated as US$ 46,211 thousands, the amdéwales at the time of endorsements/guarantees.
The method of endorsements/guaranteesalifaBVafers and its subsidiaries s are as follows:

(1) The total amount of accumulated endorsemerdségiees of GlobalWafers shall not exceed threestitine net worth of the most recent financial statgs of GlobalWafers.
(2) The amount of endorsements/guarantees of GMdfakrs for a single enterprise shall not exceed d0%e net worth of the most recent financial estaénts of GlobalWafers.

For subsidiaries, 1 time of the net worth of Glaiafers.
(3) GlobalWafers’s performance bond for duty pdigracustoms release is NT$ 9,000 thousands.
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(3) Taisil's performance bond for duty paid aftestoms release is NT$ 5,000 thousands.
Note 9: The method of endorsements/guaranteesrofselPV World and its subsidiaries s are as fatow

(1) The total amount of accumulated endorsemerdsdmtiees of Sunrise PV World shall not exceed fiougs the net worth of the most recent financiateshents of Sunrise PV
World.

(2) The amount of endorsements/guarantees of SURKsWorld for a single enterprise shall not exc&é@® of the net worth of the most recent finanstatements of Sunrise PV
World. For subsidiaries, 4 times of the net worttsonrise PV World.

(3) The total amount of Sunrise PV World's endomesetisiguarantees and that for a single enterprilérsit exceed five times the net worth of the mresent financial statements
of Sunrise PV World.

(4) For endorsements/guarantees due to businesattions, except subject to the provisions oftieeeding item, the endorsement guarantee amoBitrafse PV World should
be equal to the higher of the purchase or salesiatno
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.

Securities held as of December 31, 2018 (excludimyestment in subsidiaries, associates and joint maures)

Attachment 3

December 31, 2019

Unit: NT$ thousand / thousand shares / thousanetshihousand units

Ending balance
Name of holder Category anq . Relationship Account title Percentage o Remarks
name of security with the Company Shares/Units| Carrying | ownership
(thousands) | value (%) Fair value
Sino-American Corporate bonds of Affiliated companies Financial assets measurednairézed 530 507,68( - 507,68
Silicon Products Inc.|Crystalwise Technology cost-current and non-current
Sino-American Stock of Powertec - Financial assets at fair value through 30,410 - 2.31% -
Silicon Products Inc.|Energy Corporation other comprehensive income
Sino-American Stock of Giga Epitaxy - Financial assets at fair value through 531 6,095 1.61% 6,095
Silicon Products Inc.|Technology Corp. other comprehensive income
Sino-American Stock of Big Sun - Financial assets at fair value through 7,500 - 4.12% -
Silicon Products Inc. other comprehensive income
SSTI Stock of SILFAB SPA - Financial assets at fair value through 300 326,09( 15.009 326,09(
other comprehensive income

Sino-American Stock of SONGLONG |Sino-American Silicon ProduciEinancial assets at fair value through 221 - 13.819 -
Silicon Products Inc.|ELECTRONICS CO., |Inc.’'s management is the profit or loss-non current

LTD. director of the company
Sino-American Stock of 21-Century - Financial assets at fair value through 1,000Q - - -
Silicon Products Inc.|Silicon Inc. profit or loss-non current
SSTI Stock of Clean Venture - Financial assets at fair value through 10 - 7.20% -

21 Corporation profit or loss-non current
GlobalWafers CDIB Capital Growh - Financial assets at fair value through - 95,164 3.85% 95,163

Partners L.P profit or loss-non current
GWBV Overseas securities held - Financial assets at fair value through - 1,876,656 - 1,876,656

profit or loss-current
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Accumulatively buy or sell the same marketable secities amounting to NT$ 300 million or 20% of paidin capital

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.

For the year ended December 31, 2019

\°LJ

Attachment 4 Unit: thousand shares /INT$ thousand
. Beg|nn|r]g of the Buy Sell End of the period
Buying and | Types and Counter period
selling names of | Account titles art Relationship| Number Number Number Selling Ic . __|Disposition| Number
companies | securities party of Amount of Amount of eriégg aégi'tng gain or of Amount
shares shares shares | P loss shares
Sino-Americar|Stock of  |Financial assets at - - 34,492 270,073 - - 34,492 | 313,662 348,370 (34,708 - -
Silicon URE fair value through (note
Products Inc. other _
comprehensive
income
Sino-America|Stock of  |Financial assets at - - 3,210 319,427 10,9751,009,500 - - - - 14,185(1,031,95¢
Silicon Actron fair value through (note (note
Products Inc. other ,
comprehensive
income/investmer
in equity method
GWBV Overseas |Financial assets at - - - - - 1,876,656 - - - - 1,876,65
securities  |fair value through
held profit or loss
Note: including the unrealized valuation gain aslaneasured by Fair value and investment gainssrdader equity method.
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Attachment 5

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower than NT$300 million or 20% of tle capital stock
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Unit: NT$ Thousand

If the counter party is a related party,
disclose the previous transfer Referencesacquisition
information for and
, . - Other
Relationship Relgt|onsh|p Date of deterr_nlnlng current
Name of Name of Transaction| Transaction| Status of with the | Owner | with the transfer Amount price condition
company property date payment |Counter-party | Company Company
MEMC Korea|Property, plant |October 5, BTo the Sungdo Eng.|Non-parties - - - - |Fair value |For None
and equipment 2018 progress gCompany |Company operating
the project purpose
MEMC Korea|Property, plant |September [To the L.Keeley Non-parties - - - - |Fair value |For None
and equipment 2018 progress gConstruction |{Company operating
the project purpose
Sino-Americar|Stock of Actron | Decembef - Crystalwise |Parent - - - - Accounted |For The deposit
Silicon 12,2019 company for at fair  |operationa|of $250,00(
Products Inc. value use thousand
was paid at
the time of
signing the
sale
contract,
and the
remaining
price will
be paid
after
completing
the
ownership
transfer
registration
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Related party transactions for purchases and salesith amounts exceeding the lower than NT$ 300 mibin or 20% of the capital stock
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Attachment 6 Unit: NT$ Thousand
Transactions with Notes/Accounts receivable
Transaction situation terms different (payable)
from others
(!\(l)?nrgzr?:/ Related party | Nature of relationship Percentage of 5 oni e Perct%T;?ge of Remarks
Purchase/Sale Amount total ayment | Unit | payment NAING | hotes/accounts
terms price | terms balance :
purchases/sales receivable
(payable)
Sino-American/Aleo Solar Subsidiaries directly Sales (142,736 (2)%Net 90 days - - -%
Silicon held by the parent
Products Inc. company.
Aleo Solar Aleo Solar Subsidiaries indirectly Sales (268,427 (19)%Net 60 daysg - 88,87( 66%)| Note
Distribuzion held by the parent
Italia S.r.l| company.
Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV OneChairman of the parent Sales (713,625 (88)%415 days - 13,191 99%| Note
World Co. company is also the after the
Chairman of contract is
Sino-American Silicon agreed
Products Inc.
GlobalWafers | Sino-AmericanSubsidiaries directly Purchase 877,825 6% O/A 30 days - (220,875 (9)%| Note
Silicon Productsheld by the parent EOM
Inc. company.
GlobalWafers | GTI Subsidiary and affiliated Purchase 2,074,272 14%0O/A 60 days - (310,922 (12)%
enterprise of
Sino-American Silicon
Products Inc.
GlobalWafers | Kunshan Sino| Subsidiaries directly| Purchase 1,969,639 139%90O/A 60 days - (265,059 (10)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GlobalWafers | GWJ Subsidiaries indirectly  Purchase 5,998,428 409 O/A 60-90 - (1,365,605 (53)%| Note
held by the parent days
company.
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Transaction situation

Transactions with
terms different
from others

Notes/Accounts receivable
(payable)

Name of . . Percentage of
company Related party | Nature of relationship Percentage of 5 N unit e total Remarks
Purchase/Sale Amount total aymen nit | Payment NAING | otes/accounts
terms price | terms balance :
purchases/sales receivable
(payable)
GlobalWafers | Topsil A/S Subsidiaries indirectly  Purchase 620,593 O/A 30-60 - (42,126 (2)%| Note
held by the parent days
company.
GlobalWafers | GWS Subsidiaries indirectly  Purchase 585,759 O/A 60 days - (58,237 (2)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
Taisil GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly] Purchase 1,324,609 O/A 60 days - (249,946 (8)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 549,011 O/A 60 days - (177,954 (6)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
Actron GlobalWafers | Chairman of the parent Purchase 229,325 O/A 60 days - (48,111 (2)%| Note
Technology company is also the EOM
Corporation Chairman of
Sino-American Silicon
Products Inc.
MEMC Korea |GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly] Purchase 778,02( O/A 60 days - (209,525 (4)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
MEMC SpA | GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 847,708 O/A 60 days - (139,596 (5)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GTI GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly] Purchase 3,294,333 269%90/A 45 days - (256,098 (9)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
Kunshan Sino | GlobalWafers| Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 886,19( O/A 30 days - (72,513 (2)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWJ GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 1,681,018 13%O/A 60-90 - (426,609 (14)%| Note
held by the parent days
company.
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Transactio

n situation

Transactions with
terms different
from others

Notes/Accounts receivable
(payable)

Name of . . Percentage of
company Related party | Nature of relationship Percentage of 5 N unit e total Remarks
Purchase/Sale Amount total aymen nit | Payment NAING | otes/accounts
terms price | terms balance :
purchases/sales receivable
(payable)
Topsil A/S GlobalWafers | Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 442,842 3% O/A 30-60 - (62,464 (2)%| Note
held by the parent days
company.
GWS MEMC LLC Subsidiaries indirectly | Purchase 1,113,615 6% O/A 60 days - (210,402 (7)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC LLC Sales (556,291 (2)%O/A 60 days - 75,374 2%
GWS MEMC Sdn Bh¢Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 1,686,518 8% O/A 60 days - (221,284 (7)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC Sdn Bh¢Subsidiaries indirectly Sales (661,023 (3)%O/A 60 days - 75,452 2%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC SpA Subsidiaries indirectly| Purchase 3,831,532 199%0O/A 60 days - (509,008 (17)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC SpA Subsidiaries indirectly Sales (3,436,429 (15)%90/A 60 days - 593,826 19%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC Korea | Subsidiaries indirectly| Purrchase 1,486,461 7% O/A 60 days - (201,533 (7)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC Japan | Subsidiaries indirectly Purchase 4,382,815 22990/A 60 days - (707,117 (23)%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS MEMC Japan | Subsidiaries indirectly Sales (1,572,917 (7Y% O/A 60 days - 210,912 7%| Note
held by the parent
company.
GWS Taisil Subsidiaries indirectly | Purchase 6,982,787 35 |O/A60days - (1,041,120 (34)%| Note

held by the parent
company.
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Transaction situation

Transactions with
terms different
from others

Notes/Accounts receivable
(payable)

(i\:)a:nn;zs; Related party | Nature of relationship Percentage of 5 ni e Percte(z)r:;?ge of Remarks
Purchase/Sale Amount total ayment | Unit | payment NAING | otes/accounts
terms price | terms balance :
purchases/sales receivable
(payable)
GWS Taisil Subsidiaries indirectly Sales (524,118 (2)9%90/A 60 days - 173,631 5%| Note
held by the parent
company.
Note:  Transactions with standalone parties as meat above were eliminated when preparing the atand reports.
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Receivables from related parties with amounts excdeng the lower than NT$ 100 million or 20% of the apital stock
December 31, 2019

Attachment 7 Unit: NT$ Thousand
Overdue Amounts
Name of company Counter party Nature of relationship Ending balance Tu:r;f{)ever Amount Action taken ;i%i';’g:;zt fo?l:;):jaggsts
period (Note 1)

Sino-American  |Sulu Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 299,621 note2 - - -

Silicon Products parent company.

Inc.

SSTI AMLED Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 334,686 note2 - - -
parent company.

SSTI Sulu Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 317,927 note2 - - -
parent company.

GlobalWafers GTI Subsidiaries indirectly held bg th 256,098 11.33 - 256,098 -
parent company.

GlobalWafers GWJ Subsidiaries indirectly held by th 426,609 3.80 - 181,827 -
parent company.

GlobalWafers GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by th 177,954 5.72 - 177,954 -
parent company.

GlobalWafers MEMC Korea Subsidiaries indirectlydbly the 109,52% 3.66 - 79,48( -
parent company.

GlobalWafers MEMC SpA Subsidiaries indirectly helgdthe 139,596 5.24 - 139,596 -
parent company.

GlobalWafers Taisil Subsidiaries indirectly held thg 249,946 8.21] - 249,946 -
parent company.

Taisil GlobalWafers Subsidiaries indirectly held thg 6,400,000 note2 - - -
parent company.

Sino-American GlobalWafers Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 220,875 4.59 - 220,87% -

Silicon Products parent company.

Inc.Aleo Solar

GTI GlobalWafers Subsidiaries indirectly held bg th 310,922 6.65 - 310,922 -
parent company.

Kunshan Sino GlobalWafers Subsidiaries indirectidhy the 265,059 4.85 - 236,851 -
parent company.
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Overdue Amounts
Name of company Counter party Nature of relationship Ending balance Tu:g?(;/er Amount Action taken gi%ilc\e/ggézt fo'?lg);:/jagecgts
period (Note 1)

GWJ GlobalWafers Subsidiaries indirectly held by th 1,365,605 3.89 - 857,018 -
parent company.

GWJ GlobalWafers Subsidiaries indirectly held by th 4,140,000 note2 - - -
parent company.

GWS GWBV Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 2,998,000 note2 - - -
parent company.

GWS MEMC Japan Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 210,912 8.89 - 210,912 -
parent company.

GWS MEMC SpA Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 593,826 7.67 - 593,826 -
parent company.

GWS GWI Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 3,258,826 note2 - - -
parent company.

GWS MEMC LLC Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 173,631 3.42 - 173,631 -
parent company.

MEMC Sdn Bhd | GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held bg th 221,284 8.33 - 221,284 -
parent company.

MEMC SpA GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 509,008 8.16 - 509,008 -
parent company.

MEMC SpA GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 2,047,302 note2 - - -
parent company.

MEMC Korea GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 201,533 7.63 - 201,533 -
parent company.

MEMC Japan GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 707,117 4.94 - - -
parent company.

Taisil GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 1,041,120 7.34 - - -
parent company.

MEMC LLC GWS Subsidiaries indirectly held by the 210,402 6.74 - 210,402 -
parent company.

Note 1: The amount recovered after February 269201
Note 2: Receivables from related parties geneiaydihancing.
Note 3: The above transactions related to the atand standalone have been written off when pregahie standalone financial statements.
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Attachment 8

Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Information on investees (excluding information onnvestees in Mainland China)
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Unit: NT$ Thousand

. Original investment amount Balance as of Decemberl3 _ Share of
Main Net income .
Name of Name of . . 2019 profits/loss
. ) Location businesses and - (losses) of Remarks
investor investee December 31, | December 31, |  Shaes |Percentageol Cappying | . es of
products (thousands) | Ownership investee | .
2019 2018 value investee
Sino-America|SSTI British Investment and 1,425,608 1,425,603 48,526 100.00% 971,888 11,694 11,694Subsidiary
n Silicon Virgin triangular trade center (USD 45,255) (USD 45,255 Note 5
Products Inc. Islands with subsidiaries in
China
Sino-America|GlobalWafers| Taiwan Semiconductor silicon 8,955,952 8,955,952 222,727 51.17% 23,060,434 13,644,095 6,981,688Subsidiary
n Silicon wafer materials and
Products Inc. components
manufacturing and trade
Sino-AmericalAleo Solar Prenzlau Solar module 558,139 558,139 Note 1 | 100.00% 385,238 161,178 161,178Subsidiary
n Silicon manufacturing and sale (EUR 13,500) (EUR 13,500 Note 2
Products Inc. and wholesale of
electronic materials
Sino-AmericalAleo Sunrise |Germany | Manufacturing of solar| - Note 1 | 100.009 - (251,617) (194,488)Subsidiary
n Silicon cell as well as sale and Note 4
Products Inc. wholesale of electronic
materials
Sino-America|SAS Sunrise [Cayman Reinvestmenits varioug 794,373 794,373 24,500 100.009 461,117 (52,533 (52,533)Subsidiary
n Silicon Inc. businesses (USD 24,500) (USD 24,500
Products Inc.
Sino-America|Sunrise PV |Taiwan Power generating 300,00( 300,000 30,000100.00%  276,33( 29,842 29,597Subsidiary
n Silicon World Co. business
Products Inc.
Sino-America|Sunrise PV  |Taiwan Power generating 1,000 - 100 100.009 989 (12) (11)/Subsidiary
n Silicon Five Electric business
Products Inc.
Sino-America|Crystalwise |Taiwan Optical wafer and 2,215,803 2,010,843 86,923 41.93¢9 280,554 (751,496) (307,020)Affiliated
n Silicon Technology substrate manufacturing companies
Products Inc. [Inc. and trade Note 2
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. Original investment amount Balance as of Decemberl3 _ Share of
Main Net income .
Name of Name of . . 2019 profits/loss
ivestor investee | Location businesses and December 31 | December 31| _Shaes [ Percemageof Carrvi (losses) of es of Remarks
products ' ' | (thousands) | Ownership YING | “investee | .
2019 2018 value investee
Sino-AmericalAccu Solar |Taiwan Solar energy system 112,193 112,193 7,452 24.709 (5,488 (713)Affiliated
n Silicon Corporation provider companies
Products Inc.
Sino-America|Cathy SunrisgTaiwan Power generating 450,00( 450,000 45,000 30.009 459,333 25,615 8,841 Affiliated
n Silicon business companies
Products Inc.
Sino-America| TSCS Taiwan Semiconductor specia| 990,00( 900,000 90,000 30.93¢ 839,830 (150,029) (78,333)Affiliated
n Silicon gas and chemical companies
Products Inc. material manufacturer Note 2
Sino-AmericaActron Taiwan Semiconductor electric 1,147,71% - 14,185 15.50% 1,031,956 323,47% 12,458Affiliated
n Silicon Technology wafer materials and companies
Products Inc.|Corporation components Note 2
manufacturing and trade
Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV [Taiwan Power generating - 42,00¢ - - - 4154 - Subsidiary
World Co. Electric business Note 7
Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV [Taiwan Power generating - 15,00( - - - (123 - Subsidiary
World Co.  |Two business Note 7
Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV |Taiwan Power generating 15,000 100,00¢ 1,500 100.00% 16,623 1,488 - Subsidiary
World Co.  |Three business Note 7
Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV |Taiwan Power generating 100,00( 100,000 10,000 100.00% 15,49( 449 - Subsidiary
World Co. Four business Note 7
Sunrise PV |Sunrise PV |Taiwan Power generating - 65,00( - - - 264 - Subsidiary
World Co. Five business Note 7
SAS Sunrise |SAS Sunrise [Singapore |Reinvestments in vario 719,292 719,292 30,934 100.009 549,101 (25,460 - Subsidiary
Inc. Pte.Ltd. businesses (USD 22,000) (USD 22,000 Note 7
SAS Sunrise |AMLED Philippines |Reinvestments in vario - - - - - - - Subsidiary
Pte.Ltd. businesses Note 6 and 7
SAS Sunrise |Sulu Philippines|Power generating 440,667 440,667 420,000 40.009 306,658 (46,753 - Subsidiary
Pte.Ltd. business (USD 13,435) (USD 13,435 Note 7
AMLED Sulu Philippines|Power generating 297,229 297,229 472,500 45.009 173,902 (46,753 - Subsidiary
business (USD 9,065 (USD 9,065 Note 7
Aleo Solar Aleo Solar |ltaly Solar module sale and 4,078 4,074 Note 1 | 100.00% 2,994 4,652 - Subsidiary
Distribuzione wholesale of electronic (EUR 100 (EUR 100 Note 7
Italia S.r.l materials
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. Original investment amount Balance as of Decemberl3 _ Share of
Main Net income .
Name of Name of . . 2019 profits/loss
. ) Location businesses and - (losses) of Remarks
investor investee December 31, | December 31, | Shaes = |Percentageol Cappying | . es of
products (thousands) | Ownership investee | .
2019 2018 value investee
GlobalWafers GWI Cayman |Reinvestments in vario 2,241,668 2,241,668 90,000 100.00% 4,360,907 2,074,206 - Subsidiary
businesses (USD 73,423) (USD 73,423 Note 7
GlobalWafers GSI Cayman Business investment and 756,809 756,809 25,000100.00% 1,521,431 202,929 - Subsidiary
triangular trade center (USD 26,555) (USD 26,555 Note 7
with subsidiaries in
China
GlobalWafers GWJ Japan Semiconductor silicon 5,448,015 5,448,015 128 100.00% 15,262,418 1,904,017 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and Note 3 and 7
trading
GlobalWafers GWafers Singapore |Reinvestments in vario 11,966,930 11,966,930 364,000 67.20% 23,271,556 5,553,670 - Subsidiary
Singapore businesses Note 7
GlobalWafers Topsil A/S Denmark | Semiconductor silicon 1,964,069 1,964,069 1,000 100.00% 1,660,861 64,061 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and (DKK407,600) (DKK407,600) Note 7
trading
GlobalWafersWhole Global| Taiwan Reinvestments in vario 309,76( 200,000 30,976 30.98¢9 571,929 65,636 20,331 | Affiliated
Investment businesses companies
Corporation
GlobalWafers Taisil Taiwan Semiconductor silicon 14,504,663 14,504,663 9,999 99.99% 17,705,613 3,546,184 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and
sales
GWI GWafers Singapore |Reinvestments in vario 5,411,947 5,411,947 177,674 32.80% 4,360,907 5,553,670 - Subsidiary
Singapore businesses Note 3 and 7
GWJ MEMC JapanJapan Semiconductor silicon 373,413 373,413 750 100.00% 3,066,944 227,673 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and (JPY 100,000) (JPY 100,000) Note 3 and 7
sales
Topsil A/S Topsil PL Poland Semiconductor silicon - - 0.1 100.009 - 13,719 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and Note 3 and 7
trading
GWafers GWS Singapore | Investment, marketing 14,671,320 14,671,320 299,44%100.00% 25,151,706 6,223,239 - Subsidiary
Singapore and trading business (USD 436,398) (USD 436,398) Note 3 and 7
GWS GWBV Netherlandgkeinvestments in vario 6,413,892 6,413,892 0.1 100.00% 40,918,549 3,547,609 - Subsidiary
businesses (USD 162,723) (USD 162,723) Note 3 and 7
GWBV MEMC SpA | Italy Semiconductor silicon 6,732,641 6,732,641 65,000 100.00% 11,849,317 1,425,916 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and (USD 204,788) (USD 204,788) Note 3 and 7

sales
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. Original investment amount Balance as of Decemberl3 _ Share of
Main Net income .
Name of Name of . . 2019 profits/loss
ivestor investee | Location businesses and December 31 | December 31| _Shaes [ Percemageof Carrvi (losses) of es of Remarks
products ' ' | (thousands) | Ownership YING | “investee | .
2019 2018 value investee
GWBV MEMC BV |Singapore |Reinvestments in vario - - - - - 414,476 - Subsidiary
businesses Note 3 and 7
MEMC SpA | MEMC SarlL |France Trading business 1,316 1,316 0.5 100.009 807 753 - Subsidiary
(USD 40 (USD 40 Note 3 and 7
MEMC SpA | MEMC Germany | Trading business 4,622 4,622 0.002 100.009 4,817 (617 - Subsidiary
GmbH (USD 141 (USD 141 Note 3 and 7
MEMC SpA |MEMC BV | NetherlandgReinvestments in variou - 2,430,141 - - - 414,476 - Subsidiary
businesses (UsSD 73,918 Note 3 and 7
MEMC BV |MEMC Korea|Korea Semiconductor silicon - 2,427,650 - - - 1,270,737 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and (USD 73,842 Note 3 and 7
sales
GWBV MEMC Korea/Korea Semiconductor silicon 3,641,474 3,641,474 25,200 100% 15,373,708 1,270,737 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and (USD 110,763) (USD 110,763) Note 3 and 7
sales
GWBV GTI U.S.A. Epitaxial silicon wafer 2,779,849 2,779,849 1/ 100.00% 9,486,787 947,639 - Subsidiary
production and trade of (USD 91,262) (USD 91,262 Note 3 and 7
epitaxy foundry businegs
GWBV MEMC Sdn [Malaysia | Semiconductor silicon 898,016 898,016 1,036 100.009 740,576 75,835 - Subsidiary
Bhd wafer R&D, (Usb 27,315) (USD 27,315 Note3 and 7
manufacturing and sales
GWBV MEMC Ipoh |Malaysia | Semiconductor silicon 93,907 146,624 612,300 100.00% 3,807 236 - Subsidiary
wafer manufacturing and (USD 1,323 (USD 3,020 Note 3 and 7
sales
GTI MEMC LLC |U.S.A. Semiconductor silicon 543,384 543,384 - 100.00% 4,263,233 178,814 - Subsidiary
wafer R&D, (Usbh 17,839) (USD 17,839 Note 3 and 7
manufacturing and salels

Note:1 Corporation limited

Note 2: The investment gain or loss recognitiofudes the investment cost and the amortizatioh@fiet equity acquired.

Note 3: The investees are indirect subsidiariehefCompany. GWafer Singapore had been restrucagebde Company and GWI held 67.2 %and 32.8 p%emtwely, of its shares on
July 1, 2018. In addition, GTI was transferred t&/BV; and MEMC LLC was transferred to GTI. In Jung 2019, MEMC BV was transferred to GWBV and wagiidated in
September 2019. MEMC Korea was transferred from GVi#Bd MEMC BV to GWBV.

Note 4: Aleo sunrise was100% owned3ino-American Silicon Products Inc from March, 2019

Note 5: Not including earnings transferred to apiicrease.

Note 6: The Company does not hold the ownershgrasts of AMLED, but the Company can control thraficial and operating strategies of AMLED and abtdi the benefits of its
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operations and net assets in accordance with tims t&f the agreements with such standalone, so AMiskconsidered as a subsidiary.
Note 7: The profit and loss of the investee comgarigcluded in its investment company. To avoidfcgion, it will not be expressed here.
Note 8: The above transactions relating to thedstlame standalone have been written off when piegpdne standalone financial statements.
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Sino-American Silicon Products Inc.
Information on investment in mainland China
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Attachment 9

() The names of investees in Mainland China, tlanrbusinesses and products, and other information

Unit: NT$ Thousand

(I Limitation on investment in Mainland China

Accumulated Investment flows
outflow of Accumulated Net Shareholding| |~ Accumulated
N . . Total Method | investment __outflow of income |ratio of direct| .
ame of Main businesses investment from L income remittance
) amount of Of from : (losses) or indirect Book value .
investee and products L o . Outflow Inflow Taiwan as of . (losses) of earnings
paid in capital | investment| Taiwan as of December 31, of the investment of (Note 4) in current
January 1, 2018 investee |GlobalWafers iod
2017 perio
Kunshan Sino|Silicon rods an 769,177 (Note 1) 713,30( - - 713,300 195,307  100.009 195,307 1,425,100 -
silicon wafer (Note 9 (USD 21,729 (UsD21,729
processing and
trade
SunEdison  [Trading 7,527 (Note 2) (Note 2) - - (Note 2) (557) 100.009 (557 8,914 -
Shanghai business (RMB 1,500
Shanghai Sales and 9,756 (Note 3) - - - - (21,528 60.009 (12,917 7,627 -
GROWFAST |marketing (RMB 2,000
Semiconductgbusiness
Technology
Co. Ltd.

Accumulated Investment in Mainland

Company Name China as of December 31, 2018

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA

Upper Limit on Investment

GlobalWafers 713,300 (USD 21,729)

818,233 (USD @3)(Note 5)

27,043,950 (Note 6)

Note 1: Investments through GSI registered in naaidIChina.
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:

GlobalWafers on December 31, 2018.

Note 7: Retained earnings Transferred to Capital weluded.

Investments through GWBYV registered in naaid China which is acquired from the acquisitiéiGoVS (SSL).
Kunshan Sino was invested by Shanghai GR&SVTHn mainland China, without limit on investmedtje to not having any investment from Taiwan.
The basis for investment income (loss) gad®n is from the financial statements audited.
Initial investment amounts denominatecbireign currencies are translated into New TaiwaldPousing the Historical Foreign Exchange Rate.
Calculated by 60% of the quota of the "RewiPrinciples of Investment or Technical Cooperatio Mainland China" August 29, 2008, multiplied tye net worth
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